
 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Wednesday, June 25th, 2025 

 
Table Of Contents 

(Click On Each Agenda Item to Navigate to That Section) 
 

AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 2 

  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & NEWS REPORT………………………………………………. 

 

Page 5 

04/30/2025 BOARD MEETING MINUTES………………………………………………. 

 

Page 13 

05/14/2025 BOARD FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES………………… Page 20 

  

06/11/2025 BOARD FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES………………… Page 27 

  

ORDER 25-25-06-01H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Appointing Members of the Homes for Good Foundation Board of 

Directors  

Page 33 

  

ORDER 25-25-06-02H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Granting Approval for the Submittal of the Annual Plan and MTW 

Supplement to HUD  

Page 51 

  

ORDER 25-25-06-03H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Approving the Access & Opportunity Plan for July 2025 – June 2026  

Page 91 

  

PRESENTATION……………………………………………………………………………….. 

Financial Sustainability Roadmap Timeline  

Page 114 

  

 



AGENDA 

Homes for Good Housing Agency 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Location of the meeting: 

Homes for Good Administrative Building 

100 W 13th Avenue 

Eugene, OR 97401 

 

Teams 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person with option to join via public video call and conference line (see 

details below). 
 

 

Wednesday, June 25th, 2025, at 1:30pm   

The June 25th, 2025, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners meeting will be held at the Homes for 

Good Administrative Building. It will also be available via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The 

public has the option to participate in person or by joining via video call or conference line.   

 

Teams Meeting: 

 

Join Meeting: Link  

Meeting ID: 233 949 250 95 

Passcode: BHWRbS 

_______________________________________ 

 

Dial-In: +1 689-206-0388,,817935186# 

Phone Conference ID: 817 935 186# 

 

 

Guide to Using Teams: Link 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmYyOWU3MmUtZGY0Ny00ZjlmLWFkMzctY2U5OTk5OTRiYWFi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227c92bd05-c451-48f0-90fd-d8f838d8cee2%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22843b8a6e-63c8-43c6-ae6f-564fea258c89%22%7d
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlearymixon_homesforgood_org/EcptlDasMX5PrO7wrInReCkBpoaivJokVTDNL4RG0EnrGw?e=Ug6l9f


1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Maximum time 30 minutes: Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited 

to 3-minutes per public comments. If the number wishing to testify exceeds 10 speakers, then 

additional speakers may be allowed if the chair determines that time permits or may be taken at a later 

time. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: The Homes for Good Board of Commissioners is a policy advisory body to Homes for 

Good and is not designated to resolve issues in public meetings. The Board will not discuss or make 

decisions immediately on any issue presented.  

 

2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE (2 min. limit per commissioner) 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(d), to conduct 
deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations.    

 

Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive 
session. All other members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news 

media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during the executive session, 

except to state the general subject of the session as previously announced. No decision may be made 
in executive session.  

 

7. ADMINISTRATION 

 

A. Executive Director Report  

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of 04/30/2025 Board Meeting Minutes  

B. Approval of 05/14/2025 Board Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

C. Approval of 06/12/2025 Board Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

D. Approval of ORDER 25-25-06-01H: In the Matter of Appointing Members of the Homes for 

Good Foundation Board of Directors 

 

9. ORDER 25-25-06-02H  

In the Matter of Granting Approval for the Submittal of the Annual Plan and MTW Supplement to HUD 

(Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Director) (Estimated 20 minutes)  

 

 

 



 

10. ORDER 25-25-06-03H  

In the Matter of Approving the Access & Opportunity Plan for July 2025 – June 2026 

(Jordyn Shaw, Public Information Officer) (Estimated 30 minutes)  

 

11. PRESENTATION 

Financial Sustainability Roadmap Timeline 

(Jacob Fox, Executive Director) (Estimated 15 minutes)  

 

12.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 



J U N E  2 0 2 5EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

Over the past few months, we have been

deal ing with a landlord that has f i led

three separate Not ices of Smal l  Cla ims

against us related to the landlord’s

opinion that funds were due to them

beyond what we had already disbursed.

In Smal l  Cla ims Court there is a required

mediat ion step in advance of the case

going before a judge. Each case requires

a mediat ion session which is scheduled

for a half  a day before the case can go

before a judge. In one case we sett led

with the landlord for a smal l  sum just to

save the staff  t ime expense of going

before a judge. In the two other cases

the landlord refused to mediate, and

both cases went before a judge. In the

f irst case the landlord didn't  attend the

tr ia l ,  so the judgment was in our favor,

and we waived the money award. In the

second case the landlord did attend the

tr ia l ,  and the judge ruled in our favor,

and we were awarded the f i l ing fee and

the prevai l ing party fee. When you add

up the staff  t ime invested in these three

cases i t  is a s ignif icant expense to our

organizat ion and there were 5 half  days

that we had to devote to defending

ourselves not including the preparatory

t ime. 

We cont inue to act ively develop our

plans for Parcel 2 in the Riverfront

Urban Renewal Area in partnership with

the Atkins Dame and the City of Eugene.

The development, construct ion and

operat ing budgets have been

signif icant ly ref ined, which has resulted

in a $1.2mm gap that we are current ly

working to resolve. These types of gaps

are typical  for a project in this state of

pre-development. Atkins Dame is also

ref in ing design and cost est imating with

us in the loop providing our input as the

future owner. We are working on al l  the

legal documents for this partnership

including an opt ion agreement for the

land, an intergovernmental agreement

and a joint development agreement.

Atkins Dame   

Act Now Lane Housing Product ion Act ion

Team cont inues to del iver agreed upon

work products. We have f in ished up the

GIS mapping system to ident i fy opt imal

land to purchase for future housing

development. We have developed a

project cost est imate for a 6 plex on

land that when acquired included a

single-fami ly home and a project cost

est imate for an accessory dwel l ing unit .

Our current focus is developing a

methodology that would educate elected

off ic ia ls and administrators from our

local jur isdict ions on the return on

investments i f  we increase our housing

product ion by 1000 units in Lane

County.   



 
 

 

 

 

 

NEWS REPORTS  

May2025 - June 2025 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 
May 12th, 2025  
Lazy Days Mobile Home and RV Park in Blue River, which was destroyed in the 
2020 Holiday Farm Fire, has reopened after being rebuilt by Homes for Good, 
with housing applications opening for 13 available two-bedroom modular homes 
for rent or rent-to-own. Priority is given to former Lazy Days residents or Holiday 
Farm Fire victims who meet income requirements of no more than 80% of Area 
Median Income, with applications reviewed on a first-come, first-served basis. 
 
Link: 
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/applications-opening-for-lazy-days-mobile-

home-and-rv-park-in-blue-river/article_84dd147b-6ac9-4c00-a445-

79a3e9e15d40.html 

 

 

 
 

 
May 16th, 2025  
Miranda Wilcox, a 60-year-old former payroll specialist at Homes for Good, was 
indicted on 20 crimes including three counts of aggravated first-degree theft and 
17 counts of computer crime for allegedly stealing more than $100,000 from the 
affordable housing agency. The alleged thefts occurred between April 2022 and 
September 2024 while she worked at the organization that helps low-income 
families find housing 
 
Link: 
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/woman-accused-of-embezzling-from-local-non-

profit-indicted-on-20-crimes/article_66df5cbc-7519-4116-b6b5-

dfb9bad73d0e.html 

 

 

 

Woman accused of embezzling from local agency 
 indicted on 20 crimes 

Applications opening for Lazy Days Mobile Home 
 and RV Park in Blue River 

https://www.kezi.com/news/local/applications-opening-for-lazy-days-mobile-home-and-rv-park-in-blue-river/article_84dd147b-6ac9-4c00-a445-79a3e9e15d40.html
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/applications-opening-for-lazy-days-mobile-home-and-rv-park-in-blue-river/article_84dd147b-6ac9-4c00-a445-79a3e9e15d40.html
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/applications-opening-for-lazy-days-mobile-home-and-rv-park-in-blue-river/article_84dd147b-6ac9-4c00-a445-79a3e9e15d40.html
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/woman-accused-of-embezzling-from-local-non-profit-indicted-on-20-crimes/article_66df5cbc-7519-4116-b6b5-dfb9bad73d0e.html
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/woman-accused-of-embezzling-from-local-non-profit-indicted-on-20-crimes/article_66df5cbc-7519-4116-b6b5-dfb9bad73d0e.html
https://www.kezi.com/news/local/woman-accused-of-embezzling-from-local-non-profit-indicted-on-20-crimes/article_66df5cbc-7519-4116-b6b5-dfb9bad73d0e.html


 

 
May 16th, 2025  
Eugene Police arrested Miranda Renee Wilcox, a 59-year-old former HR & Payroll 
specialist at Homes for Good, charging her with three counts of aggravated theft 
in the first degree and 17 counts of computer crime after an investigation 
revealed she embezzled approximately $560,000 from the housing assistance 
agency. The theft was initially estimated at $125,000 when reported in 
September 2024, but months of investigation by the Financial Crimes Unit 
uncovered the much larger loss through review of thousands of bank statements.  
 
Link: 
https://nbc16.com/newsletter-daily/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-
case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-
county-oregon  
 

 

 
 
May 16th, 2025  
Miranda Renee Wilcox, 59, a former human relations and payroll specialist at 
Homes for Good, was arrested and charged with 20 felony counts including three 
charges of aggravated first-degree theft and 17 charges of computer crimes for 
allegedly embezzling about $560,000 from the Lane County public housing 
agency. The investigation began in September 2024 when the agency initially 
estimated losses at $125,000, but months of investigation by Eugene Police's 
Financial Crimes Unit revealed the actual theft was much larger, spanning from 
2022 to 2024. 
 
Link: 
 https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/05/16/police-
arrest-homes-for-good-employee-on-theft-charges/  
 
 
 

 

EPD make arrest in embezzlement case involving local 

housing agency Homes for Good 

 

Police arrest Homes for Good employee on theft charges 

 

https://nbc16.com/newsletter-daily/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://nbc16.com/newsletter-daily/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://nbc16.com/newsletter-daily/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/05/16/police-arrest-homes-for-good-employee-on-theft-charges/
https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/05/16/police-arrest-homes-for-good-employee-on-theft-charges/


 

 
May 16th, 2025  
Miranda Renee Wilcox, a 59-year-old former human resources and payroll 
specialist at Homes for Good, was arrested and charged with three counts of 
first-degree aggravated theft and 17 counts of computer crime for allegedly 
embezzling approximately $560,000 from the nonprofit housing organization. 
The theft was initially estimated at $125,000 when reported in September 2024, 
but months of investigation by Eugene Police revealed the actual loss was much 
higher, leading to Wilcox's arrest on May 14. 
 
Link: 
https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/crime/2025/05/16/homes-for-good-
embezzlement-case/83674303007/  
 
 

 

 

 
Eugene Police arrested Miranda Renee Wilcox, a 59-year-old former HR & Payroll 
specialist at Homes for Good, on charges of three counts of aggravated theft in 
the first degree and 17 counts of computer crime after discovering she allegedly 
embezzled approximately $560,000 from the housing assistance agency. The 
theft was initially estimated at $125,000 when reported in September 2024, but 
months of investigation by the Financial Crimes Unit revealed the actual loss was 
much higher through review of thousands of bank statements. 
 
Link: 
https://kval.com/news/local/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-
involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-
oregon  
 
Link: 
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/crime/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-
embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good/ar-AA1EVa3q    
 
 

Eugene woman accused of embezzling over $500K from low-

income housing nonprofit 

EPD make arrest in embezzlement case involving local 

housing agency Homes For Good 

 

https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/crime/2025/05/16/homes-for-good-embezzlement-case/83674303007/
https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/crime/2025/05/16/homes-for-good-embezzlement-case/83674303007/
https://kval.com/news/local/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://kval.com/news/local/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://kval.com/news/local/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good-crimes-finances-theft-lane-county-oregon
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/crime/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good/ar-AA1EVa3q
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/crime/eugene-police-make-arrest-in-embezzlement-case-involving-local-non-profit-homes-for-good/ar-AA1EVa3q


 

 

 
May 16th, 2025  
Miranda Renee Wilcox, a 59-year-old former HR and Payroll specialist at Homes 
for Good, was arrested on May 14 after an investigation revealed approximately 
$560,000 in missing funding from the Lane County housing authority. She faces 
multiple charges including one count of forgery, six counts of aggravated theft, 
16 counts of identity theft, and 114 counts of computer crime related to the 
alleged embezzlement scheme that was reported to police in September 2024 
 
Link: 
https://www.klcc.org/crime-law-justice/2025-05-16/former-homes-for-good-
employee-arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme  
 
Link: 
https://www.oregonlive.com/crime/2025/05/oregon-public-housing-employee-
arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme.html    
 
 

 

 

 
May 16th, 2025  
A former Homes for Good employee who worked as a human resources and 
payroll specialist from February 2015 until September 2024 was arrested on 
charges of allegedly embezzling approximately $560,000 from the Lane County 
public housing authority. The former employee faces 137 charges including 16 
counts of identity theft, six counts of aggravated theft in the first degree, 114 
counts of computer crime, and one count of forgery after an investigation that 
began with an initial estimate of $125,000 in losses.  
 
Link: 
https://dailyemerald.com/166042/city-news/former-homes-for-good-employee-
arrested-in-560000-embezzlement-case/ 
 
 
 

Former Homes for Good employee arrested  

in embezzlement scheme 

 

Former Homes for Good employee arrested in $560,000 

embezzlement case 

 

https://www.klcc.org/crime-law-justice/2025-05-16/former-homes-for-good-employee-arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme
https://www.klcc.org/crime-law-justice/2025-05-16/former-homes-for-good-employee-arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme
https://www.oregonlive.com/crime/2025/05/oregon-public-housing-employee-arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme.html
https://www.oregonlive.com/crime/2025/05/oregon-public-housing-employee-arrested-in-embezzlement-scheme.html


 

 

 
June 10th, 2025  
Eugene City Council unanimously approved nearly $710,000 in Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund spending to create 205 new affordable housing units, amid a 
14% rise in homelessness in Lane County. Homes for Good, a previous AHTF 
recipient in 2023, was cited as an example of the fund's impact, with the 
organization saying AHTF funding allowed it to increase capacity at its future 
Coleman affordable housing site by more than 25%, expanding from 38 to 52 
housing units. 
 
 
 
Link: 
https://dailyemerald.com/167010/city-news/eugene-city-council-approves-710k-
for-affordable-housing-projects-amid-rising-homelessness/  
 

 

 

 
June 11th, 2025  
Miranda Renee Wilcox, 59, a former Homes for Good payroll specialist, now faces 
six counts of first-degree theft (up from three) and 21 counts of felony identity 
theft in connection with an alleged embezzlement of approximately $560,000 
from the Lane County public housing agency. The updated indictment filed Friday 
covers thefts allegedly occurring from early 2022 through September 2024, with 
each theft charge representing an amount greater than $50,000. 
 
Link: 
https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/06/09/homes-for-
good-charges-filed/  
 
 
 
 
 
 

More felony charges filed against  

Homes for Good former employee 

 

Eugene City Council approves $710K for affordable housing 

projects amid rising homelessness 

 

https://dailyemerald.com/167010/city-news/eugene-city-council-approves-710k-for-affordable-housing-projects-amid-rising-homelessness/
https://dailyemerald.com/167010/city-news/eugene-city-council-approves-710k-for-affordable-housing-projects-amid-rising-homelessness/
https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/06/09/homes-for-good-charges-filed/
https://lookouteugene-springfield.com/story/latest-news/2025/06/09/homes-for-good-charges-filed/


 

 

 
June 13th, 2025  
Ollie Court is an 81-unit affordable housing complex being built by Homes For 
Good near West 13th Avenue and Chambers Street in Eugene, featuring a co-
located 12,000-square-foot early learning center with six classrooms for both 
residents and the broader community. Construction began in summer 2024 and 
is expected to be completed by the end of December, serving households 
earning at or below 50% of the Area Median Income (about $45,000 annually for 
a family of four). 
 
Link: 
https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/local/2025/06/13/eugene-oregon-
affordable-housing-ollie-court/84175225007/  

What's that being built next to 

 César E. Chávez Elementary School? 

 

https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/local/2025/06/13/eugene-oregon-affordable-housing-ollie-court/84175225007/
https://www.registerguard.com/story/news/local/2025/06/13/eugene-oregon-affordable-housing-ollie-court/84175225007/


MINUTES 

Homes for Good Housing Agency       

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

_______________________________________________________________________

Wednesday, April 30th, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. 

Homes for Good conducted the April 30th, 2025, meeting in person at the Homes for Good 
administrative building and via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The public was able to join 
the call, give public comments, and listen to the call. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board Members Present: 
Heather Buch 

Justin Sandoval 

Kirk Strohman 

Chloe Chapman 

Larissa Ennis 

Destinee Thompson 

Board Members Absent: 
Michelle Thurston 

Pat Farr 

Joel Iboa  

Quorum Met



1. PUBLIC COMMENT  
None 

  
2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE  
None 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
None 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS  
None 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS  
None 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

None 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION  

A. Executive Director Report 

Jacob Fox discussed ongoing work with A.C.T Now Lane and the Housing Production 
Subcommittee development of a GIS Mapping tool that identifies optimal land for 
housing production. Additionally, there are a variety of proformas to financially plan 
for various housing types. Such as: 70-unit garden style apartment community, mid-
rise, 2-plex, 3-plex, 4-plex, and 9-plex along with other non-traditional housing types.  

Hayden Homes is providing plans for 9-plex developments specifically.  

Pivot Architecture is working on developing plans for a detached bedroom community 
(bed/bath with shared laundry and kitchen space)   

Larissa Ennis and Kirk Strohman are both on the A.C.T. Now Steering Committee.  
Additionally, Larissa Ennis is the lead for the Communications Subcommittee.  

Jacob Fox sits on the Synchrous Board with determines and sets insurance rates for 
the insurance pool Homes for Good is a part of. In previous meetings the board has 
discussed removing Homes for Good from that pool – but with Jacob’s ongoing 
involvement and ability to advocate on behalf of Homes for Good, the Agency for the 
time being will remain in the pool.  

Homes for Good received money from Northwest Natural and Oregon Health Authority 
to replace the heating and colling system at the Heeran Center. Based on recent 
appraisal of $5.2 million Homes for Good is open to selling the property Lane County 
if they are interested.  



A reminder that Jacob Fox will be out of the office next month and Deputy Director, 
Ela Kubok will be handling the meeting in Jacob’s place.  

Discussion Themes 

▪ GIS Mapping and accessibility factors included 

B. Quarterly Employee Excellence Awards 
▪ Rent Assistance Manager, Nat Dybens presented the Employee Excellence 

Award to Denise Hernandez 
▪ Deputy Director, Ela Kubok presented the Employee Excellence Award to Cori 

Larson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approval of 03/19/2025 Board Meeting Minutes  
B. Approval of 04/09/2025 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
C. ORDER 25-30-04-01H: In the Matter of Accepting a Bid & Awarding Contract #25-C-

0018 McKenzie Village Reroofs Phase 10 
 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Heather Buch 

Second: Justin Sandoval 

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, 

Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Excused: Michelle Thurston, Joel Iboa, Pat Farr 

The 04/30/2025 Consent Agenda was approved [6/0/3] 

 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

9. ORDER 25-30-04-02: In the Matter of Approving the Bylaws of Homes for Good 

Housing Agency of Lane County, Oregon Revisions 
Executive Director, Jacob Fox Presenting 

 

Overview 

A Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee was established to review, update and revise the bylaws to provide 

more specificity and clarity surrounding the Homes for Good Board of Commissioner Bylaws. The Ad 

Hoc Committee members were Jacob Fox, Kirk Strohman, Justin Sandoval, and Jasmine Leary Mixon.  

Homes for Good utilized other Public Housing Authority Bylaws as reference documents such as 

Jackson County and Home Forward.  

 

The primary changes or clarifications included in the revisions were:  

- Specificity of Board Finance Committee 

- Term limits of Chair and Vice Chair 

- Board Chair and Vice Chair nomination/succession process 

- Conflict of interest language and reference ORS as basis  

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Clarifying authorized signers Board Chair and/or  

▪ Clarifying the succession plan of Chair to include the Vice Chair may assume the role upon 

election period, but it is not mandatory nor guaranteed.  

o Article III Section 3: Revised language to say, “The Chair of the Agency may be the 

previous Vice Chair”.” 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Chloe Chapman 

Second: Destinee Thompson 

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, 

Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Excused: Michelle Thurston, Joel Iboa, Pat Farr 

ORDER 25-30-04-02H was approved [6/0/3] 
 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 
 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

10. ORDER 25-30-04-03H: In the Matter of Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Enter Homes for Good into a Joint Development Agreement with Atkins-Dame 

and an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Eugene to Develop 

Affordable Housing on Parcel 2 in the Eugene Urban Renewal District 

Real Estate Development Director, Audrey Banks Presenting  
 

Overview 

“Parcel 2” is a one of several parcels in the Eugene Riverfront Urban Renewal District owned by the 

City of Eugene and is specifically designated for affordable housing. City of Eugene currently owns 

the land. Homes for Good wants to enter into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the City of 

Eugene for a real property transfer agreement in the amount of $1.00.  

 

Atkins Dame would be the contractor and project manager for all aspects of pre-development and 

construction. Homes for Good wants to enter into a joint development agreement (JDA) with Atkin-

Dame. Developer fees would be split 50/50.  

 

The current concept would be a mixed property of 29 studios and 48 open 1-bedroom units. The 

development would also include a ground-floor management office, bike storage, and lobby. A 

community room would be located for residents on the 2nd floor. There is space for 14 parking spaces 

and additional parking options are being discussed.  

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Appreciation for the expediency of the development and that affordable housing will be 

developed as part of this urban renewal project.  

▪ Confirmed legal review of proposed agreements 

▪ Windows in units 

▪ Parking options without building additional parking facilities (City Hall, Parkview Terrace, etc.) 

▪ Incorporation of the area history – specifically the displacement of the Black community to build 

the Ferry Street Bridge  

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Destinee Thompson 

Second: Heather Buch 

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, 

Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Excused: Michelle Thurston, Joel Iboa, Pat Farr 

ORDER 25-30-04-03H was approved [6/0/3] 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 



 
11. OTHER BUSINESS 

[Justin] May is bike month – ride a bike! 

 
  

Meeting adjourned at 2:25 p.m.  
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary Mixon 



MINUTES 

Homes for Good Housing Agency       

FINANCE COMMITTEE

_______________________________________________________________________

Wednesday, May 15th, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. 

Homes for Good conducted the May 15th, 2025, meeting via a public video call with dial-in 
capacity. The public was able to join and listen to the call. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Members Present: 
Kirk Strohman 

Chloe Chapman 

Larissa Ennis 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

1. Audit Updates 

Finance Director, Dan Temmesfeld presenting 

 

Overview 

 

BERMAN HOPKINS AUDIT 

Berman Hopkins is on track to issue audit by the end of May. There are a few key open items to clear 

up, but they should be resolved by the auditor and Brandy McPherson at the end of the week.  

 

NOVOGRADAC  

There are 10 single audits total that Novogradac is working on. Four (4) have been completed and 

submitted. Three (3) are drafted and under final review – they should be submitted by the beginning 

of next week. These properties are Bascom Village, The Oaks and The Nel. The three (3) remaining 

audits will be drafted next week for Munsel Park, Market District Commons and Richardson Bridge.  

Discussion Themes 

None 

 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

2. Budget to Actuals: Central Office Cost Center 

Deputy Director, Ela Kubok presenting 

 

Overview 

Yardi creates budget to actual reports. The board has been provided with an Excel version of this 

report. Ela Kubok presented the report directly from Yardi which allows for a “drill down” into what 

specific charges are to budget line items to explain how the Agency is “on-track”, exceeding the 

budget or below budget.  

 

In reviewing the report Homes for Good has been able to determine how things should be coded in 

the future to ensure they are reported in the correct budget line item.  

 

It is unclear what will be finalized in the federal budget. The first draft proposed budget would 

indicate an overall 43% budget cut for Homes for Good. Historically the federal budget process 

results in a compromise, therefore Homes for Good will do scenario planning based on 25% cut.  

 

 

NOTABLE BUDGET LINES 

- Consultants 

- Insurance Claim Reimbursements  

- Maintenance provides a breakdown of Fee for Service work completed that is required to be 

budgeted through the COCC by HUD  

 

 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Utilization of the “Cashflow” line item in the report (total income – total expense = cashflow) to 

quickly reference if the COCC is on budget – it has no relation to what is actually in the bank 

accounts 

▪ Separate internal reporting is used for weekly cashflow analysis  

▪ “Live” budget to actual reporting in Yardi with “drill down” capabilities is helpful  

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

3. Budget to Actuals: Public Housing AMP Roll-Up 

Supportive Housing Director, Wakan Alferes presenting 

 

Overview 

Yardi creates budget to actual reports. The board has been provided with an Excel version of this 

report. Wakan Alferes presented the report directly from Yardi which allows for a “drill down” into 

what specific charges are to budget line items to explain how the Agency is “on-track”, exceeding the 

budget or below budget.  

 

In reviewing the report Homes for Good has been able to determine if there are opportunities to 

consolidate accounts and reduce bank fees.  

 

NOTABLE BUDGET LINES 

- Operating subsidy expectations are below budget 

- CAP Fund contributions have not been received, but are expected 

- Cell tower revenue had not been received for three (3) years but has since caught up and 

regularly paid 

- Administrative expenses below budget – primarily because of allocated charges 

- Traditional Health Worker Billing has allowed for a reduction in tenant services charges 

- Increase in contracts/supplies due to unexpected work  

- Insurance may appear under budget – but it’s paid on an annual/semi-annual basis for which 

impounds are accrued and paid as a lump amount  

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Traditional Health Worker Billing qualifying activities 

▪ Future goals to reduce bank accounts and subsequently bank fees 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

4. Budget to Actuals: Real Estate Development 

Real Estate Development Director, Audrey Banks presenting 

 

Overview 

Yardi creates budget to actual reports. The board has been provided with an Excel version of this 

report. Audrey Banks presented the report directly from Yardi which allows for a “drill down” into 

what specific charges are to budget line items to explain how the Agency is “on-track”, exceeding the 

budget or below budget.  

 

In reviewing the report Homes for Good has been able to determine any interest accruing accounts 

that could be paid off to save money.  

 

 NOTABLE BUDGET LINES 

- Budgets are based on projected completion dates for developments and the receipt of developer 

fees 

- Paid leave has impacted salaries  

 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Multi-year budgeting for development projects because numerous situations could cause a delay 

in receipt of developer fees based off originally planned timelines 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

5. Budget to Actuals: Asset Management 

Real Estate Development Director, Audrey Banks presenting 

 

Overview 

Yardi creates budget to actual reports. The board has been provided with an Excel version of this 

report. Audrey Banks presented the report directly from Yardi which allows for a “drill down” into 

what specific charges are to budget line items to explain how the Agency is “on-track”, exceeding the 

budget or below budget.  

 

In reviewing the report Homes for Good has been able to determine how to plan and assign budget 

items more accurately in the upcoming budget cycle.  

 

 

NOTABLE BUDGET LINES 

- “Other Government Grants” is where Lottery Bond Funds are tracked and is housed under Asset 

Management; this will be moved to another budget in the future to produce more accurate 

numbers for the Asset Management Budget 

- Paid leave has impacted salaries  

- Meet regularly with Finance to ask questions on unexpected costs that appear throughout the 

fiscal year (such as a staff member receiving a work cell phone) 

- Budgeted owner contributions have helped with funding management  

 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Use of an “Agency All” roll-up  

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

6. Financial Sustainability Roadmap Timeline 

Deputy Director, Ela Kubok Presenting 

 

Overview 

The Leadership during their weekly meeting reviewed the Financial Sustainability Roadmap and 

created a draft timeline. Task leads were assigned, and an estimated timeline and sequencing are 

outlined. Additional details that are still under discussion are estimated costs and time commitments.  

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Timeline based on prioritization and realistic ability to complete tasks based on existing daily 

tasks  

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Meeting adjourned at 2:32 p.m. 
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary Mixon 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



MINUTES 

Homes for Good Housing Agency       

FINANCE COMMITTEE

_______________________________________________________________________

Wednesday, June 11th, 2025 at 1:30 p.m. 

Homes for Good conducted the June 11th, 2025 board finance committee meeting via a public 
video call with dial-in capacity. The public was able to join and listen to the call. 

Committee Members Present: 
Kirk Strohman 

Chloe Chapman 

Larissa Ennis 

Michelle Thurston 

Justin Sandoval 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

1. Audit Updates 

Deputy Director/Controller, Ela Kubok/Sean Pearson presenting 

 

Overview 

Finance Director has resigned and no longer with Homes for Good. A consultant actively working with 

Salem Housing Authority will take on the interim role of Finance Director to support Homes for Good. 

The priority tasks for the finance team is finalizing the audit and initiating the budget process.  

 

All but one of the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) audits have been finalized. Munsel Park is 

the remaining property under review.  

 

The Homes for Good general audit is in the final stages of completion. The deadline for submission of 

financial statements to HUD is June 30th, 2025. Based of ongoing discussions with auditors, it is 

expected everything will be submitted on time.  

 

A new addition to the audit is a “Looking Forward” statement. This provides an overview of the 

priorities and direction the Agency is moving towards. There is additional context added to the audit 

that is considered more “user friendly” for the public and board to digest information and interpret 

any changes from last years’ audit.  

 

Discussion Themes 

None 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

2. Budget Timeline 

Deputy Director/Executive Support Coordinator, Ela Kubok presenting 

 

Overview 

Homes for Good has begun their budget preparation process. Last year required multiple meetings 

and an extended timeline over the course of several months. This year, since staff are more familiar 

with Yardi and with historical data existing in Yardi, the process has been simplified.  

 

The federal government is also in the midst of their budget process. Any funding impacts will be 

considered while preparing the Agency budgets. The Leadership Team, in addition to budget 

preparation, is conducting scenario-planning in the event of 20% funding reductions based on FY24 

budget numbers. This would impact programs in various ways depending on the type of funding 

reductions.  

 

[see: Budget Timeline document] 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Office hours for board members were helpful last year for context setting – and will be held this 

year as well 

▪ To Agency knowledge, other Public Housing Authorities are not conducting scenario-planning 

studies based on funding cuts – but others outside of Oregon could be  

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

3. Wage Trends 

HR Director, Bailey McEuen presenting 

 

Overview 

▪ Approximately cumulative increase of 32% from 2018-present for most classifications 

▪ Wage adjustments include: 

o Merit increases 

o Contract ratification 

o Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)  

▪ HUD funding uncertainty and program growth are new factors going into bargaining this year  

▪ Priorities will remain focused on mandatory subjects of bargaining 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Overlapping timelines of budgeting and bargaining leads to the need for assumptions in some 

cases 

▪ Factoring in financial realities/uncertainties when bargaining 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

4. Energy Services Budget to Actuals 

Energy Services Director, Esteban Montero Chacon presenting 

 

Overview 

There aren’t significant issues or concerns with the budget report. The noticeable variances are a 

result of budgeting nuances such as:  

- Coding discrepancies when invoicing, causing items to fall under the wrong budget line 

- Income numbers were entered monthly, but most of the income is based on grants, which have 

life cycles that differ from the budget timeline. 

 

Discussion Themes 

None 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

5. Rent Assistance Budget to Actuals 

Rent Assistance Director, Beth Ochs presenting 

 

Overview 

There aren’t significant issues or concerns with the budget report. The noticeable variances are a 

result of budgeting or unexpected nuances such as:  

- Criminal background check costs were reduced with the switch to Yardi, which were not 

anticipated during the budget process 

- Consultant costs were for MTW support. The consultant is still contracted with the Agency, but 

they are not providing as significant of support as expected 

- Allocated tenant services includes salaries for Family Self-Sufficiency staff but are higher than 

anticipated, it is a probably coding issue 

- Inspection costs should remain consistent, but it is possible there will be a need to increase costs 

with the lease-up of new housing developments 

- Housing Assistance Payment data is under review, as the Agency waits to hear from HUD funding 

confirmations 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Budget to actuals reports are utilized as a reference document to see where funds were 

allocated, spending trends of the Agency and forecasting on the expense side. 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 
 

Meeting adjourned at 2:32 p.m. 
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary Mixon 





 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Jordyn Shaw, Public Information Officer   

 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: ORDER 25-06-25-01H // In the Matter of Appointing Members of the Homes for 
Good Foundation Board of Directors 

 

AGENDA DATE: June 25th, 2025   

 

MOTION:   
 
It is moved that Frankie Lee shall be appointed to the Homes for Good Foundation Board of Directors.  
 

DISCUSSION: 
 

A. Issue 

Homes for Good Housing Agency Board of Commissioners approval is necessary for the appointment of 
members of the Homes for Good Foundation Board of Directors. 

 

B. Background 

The Foundation has changed substantially since its formation in 2013.  

Notable developments include: 

▪ Name change from HousingPlus to Homes for Good Foundation in 2019  
▪ Updated bylaws in 2020 
▪ A new logo and brand plan in 2023  
▪ Providing a total of $36,250 in scholarships since 2016 with $8,000 still slated to be provided in 

the next year. 
▪ Supporting Resident Services through grant pass throughs of $25,000   
▪ Hosted 11 paid interns since 2016 
▪ Hosted the first Scholar on Board from the UO who completed 90 hours of work on Foundation 

related tasks and improvements.  

 

The Homes for Good Foundation board currently has two Homes for Good staff members: Nat Dybens, 
Nicole Tarricone; and 3 non-Homes for Good Staff members: Darci Phillips, Karen Saxe, and Quinne 
Hauth.  

 

After the resignation of a staff board member in early 2025, Homes for Good staff ran an internal 

recruitment for Foundation Board Members. The application was communicated to staff on April 29th, 

2025 via an all-staff email and the applications were due on May 23rd, 2025. Applicants had the 

opportunity to join the May 13th Foundation Meeting if interested. Homes for Good received one 



 

application from a staff member, which they wish to grant membership to the board.  

 

C. Analysis 

In Accordance with Article II, Section 3. Number of Directors, of the Homes for Good Foundation Bylaws, 
The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than three and no more than fifteen members for the first 
year. The Secretary shall ensure that the Corporation maintains a current formal record of the names, 
contact information, and status of Directors. The contact information of Directors must be in the form of 
a street address, mailing address, or electronic address at which the Director elects to receive notices 
and other messages from the Corporation. 
 

In Accordance with Article II, Section 2. Qualifications of Directors, Nominees for positions on the Board 
of Directors must have exhibited an interest in and commitment to the purposes of Homes for Good 
Foundation and must have expertise in areas relevant to the needs of the organization.  
 

 

Article II, Section 5, Selection of Directors of the Homes for Good Foundation Bylaws, states: Directors 
shall serve only until the next annual election of Directors after the expiration of their terms, when 
Directors may be re-elected and any new Directors will be elected by the Board of Commissioners of 
Homes for Good Housing Agency at an annual meeting held for that purpose during the first quarter of 
the calendar year.  
 

The position was not until late quarter 1, in which recruitment could not be run within the timeframe to 
hold an annual meeting within the first quarter of the calendar year, hence the request being made in 
quarter 2.  

 

 

D. Furtherance of the Access & Opportunity Plan 

 
This appointment aligns with our Lead and Grow Ethically pillar, specifically goal #13 We will maintain 

a staff turnover rate at or below the average for public employers in Oregon.  

Being a member of the Homes for Good Foundation Board offers a unique professional development 

opportunity. In this opportunity are investing in our staff’s growth hoping increase job satisfaction and 

to limit turn over.  

 

E. Alternatives & Other Options 

If not approved at this time, Homes for Good staff will bring the order back to the Board in January of 

2026 for approval. 

F. Timing & Implementation 
 

Frankie will be approved as a member, and her first Board Meeting as a Board Member would be the 

August 12th, 2025 Meeting. She will serve a two-year term.  

 

G. Recommendation 

Approval of the proposed motion. 

 

H. Follow Up  

Upon approval of the Order, Frankie Lee-Johnson will be appointed for a two-year term to the Homes 

for Good Foundation Board of Directors.  



 

 

I. Attachments 

▪ Updated Homes for Good Foundation Bylaws 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
  

 BYLAWS  
 
 OF 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Adopted:         
                           (Date)



 
PAGE -ii- 

 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

 
 Section 1.  Purpose 
 

ARTICLE II.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 Section 1.  Duties of the Board 

 Section 2.  Qualifications of Directors  
 Section 3.  Number of Directors 

 Section 4.  Terms of Directors 
 Section 5.  Selection of Directors 
 Section 6.  Filling Vacancies      

 Section 7.  Removal of Directors 
 Section 8.  Resignation of Directors 
 Section 9.  Election of Officers 

 Section 10. Conduct of Directors   
 Section 11. Quorum  
 Section 12. Decision-Making and Voting 

 Section 13. No Proxy Voting 
 Section 14. Meetings 
 Section 15. Executive Session Meetings 

 Section 16. Telephonic Meetings 
 Section 17. Decisions by Mail or Email 
 Section 18. Notice of Meetings 

 Section 19. Waiver of Notice 
 Section 20. Authority of Directors 

 
ARTICLE III. OFFICERS AND STAFF 
 

 Section 1.  Officers 
 Section 2.  Election and Term of Office 
 Section 3.  Removal 

 Section 4.  Vacancies 
 Section 5.  President 
 Section 6.  Vice President/President Elect 

 Section 7.  Secretary 
 Section 8.  Treasurer 
 Section 9.  Chair 

 Section 10.  Executive Director and Staff 



 
PAGE -iii- 

ARTICLE IV. COMMITTEES 

 
 Section 1.  Establishment 
 Section 2.  Board Committees 

 Section 3.  Non-Board Committees 
 Section 4.  Committee Members 
 Section 5.  Chair 

 Section 6.  Committee Procedures 
 Section 7.  Limitation on Powers 
 

ARTICLE V.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
 Section 1.  Compensation of Officers and Directors 

 Section 2.  Conflicts of Interest 
 Section 3.  Tax Year 

 Section 4.  Financial Controls 
 Section 5.  Annual Financial Assessment 
 Section 6.  No Discrimination 

 Section 7.  Written Documents 
 
ARTICLE VI. AMENDMENTS 

 
 Section 1.  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 
 

 
NOTE: The Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act (ORS Chapter 65) both establishes and limits the powers and 
procedures available to nonprofit corporations.  Where any questions arise about the meaning of these bylaws, or 
where these bylaws are silent on an issue, the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act should be consulted.  If you would 
like assistance in updating, amending, or interpreting these bylaws, contact David Atkin, Attorney.



 

PAGE 1 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

 BYLAWS OF THE HOMES FOR GOOD FOUNDATION 
 

 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
Section 1.  Purpose.  The purposes of the Homes for Good Foundation are exclusively 

those allowed for organizations defined under §501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  
Within these limits, the purposes of the Homes for Good Foundation include the 

following: 
 
To improve the living conditions and quality of life of low-income Lane 

County residents.  
  
 ARTICLE II.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Section 1.  Duties of the Board.  The Board of Directors must establish the corporation’s 
policies and review and change them as necessary, oversee its programs, appoint or 

employ and supervise its staff director, authorize its expenditures, oversee its financial 
affairs, and ensure the proper management and use of its assets and property.    
 

The Board must also ensure that the corporation properly employs the necessary 
corporate formalities to make its decisions, that it prepares and submits all required 
state and federal reports, and that it operates in compliance with relevant state and 

federal laws.  Board members must diligently prepare for, attend, and participate in the 
meetings of the Board of Directors and any Board committees as needed, in order to 

carry out these tasks.   
 
The Board shall strive to meet at least four times per year, and shall strive to do this by 

meeting at least once each quarter of the year. The role of the Board does not include 
direct management or conduct of the daily operations of the organization, or the 
supervision of staff members other than the staff’s executive director.  

 
Section 2.  Qualifications of Directors.  Nominees for positions on the Board of Directors 
must have exhibited an interest in and commitment to the purposes of the Homes for 

Good Foundation, and must have expertise in areas relevant to the needs of the 
organization.  
 

Section 3.  Number of Directors.  The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than 
three and no more than fifteen members for the first year. The Secretary shall ensure 
that the Corporation maintains a current formal record of the names, contact 

information, and status of Directors. The contact information of Directors must be in the 
form of a street address, mailing address, or electronic address at which the Director 
elects to receive notices and other messages from the Corporation. 

 



 

PAGE 2 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

Section 4.  Terms of Directors.  Directors will serve two year terms.  However, unless 
they formally resign or are removed from office, directors will remain in office until their 

successors are properly elected, designated, or appointed.  There is no limit to the 
number of terms, successive or otherwise, a director may serve.   
 

Section 5.  Selection of Directors.  Directors shall serve only until the next annual 
election of Directors after the expiration of their terms, when Directors may be re-

elected and any new Directors will be elected by the Board of Commissioners of Homes 
for Good Housing Agency at an annual meeting held for that purpose during the first 
quarter of the calendar year. Nominations for new Board members may be made by the 

Board of Directors, by individual Board members, or by a Nominating Committee. 
 
Section 6.  Filling Vacancies.  The Board of Directors, by a majority vote of all of the 

Directors in office, may elect new directors to fill any vacancies on the Board, including 
vacancies created by the passage of a resolution increasing the total number of Board 
member positions.  A director elected to fill a vacancy will serve the remainder of the 

term normally associated with that position. 
 
Section 7.  Removal of Directors.  A director may be removed for the causes stated in 

these bylaws by a majority of the Board of Commissioners of Homes for Good Housing 
Agency.   A director may be removed only for the following cause: breach of a 
Director’s fiduciary responsibility. 

 
Section 8.  Resignation of Directors.  A director may resign at any time.  The resignation 

of a director must be in writing and be delivered to the Board of Directors, its presiding 
officer, the president, or the secretary.  Once delivered, a notice of resignation is 
irrevocable. 

 
Section 9.  Election of Officers.  As soon as possible following each annual election of 
directors, the Board of Directors must elect officers of the corporation. 

 
Section 10.  Conduct of Directors.  Directors must discharge their duty of loyalty and 
their duty of diligence in good faith with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like 

position would exercise under similar circumstances and in a manner the director 
reasonably believes to be in the best interest of the corporation. 
 

Section 11.  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the presence or 
participation of a quorum, which is at least a fifty-one percent (51%) majority of the 
number of Directors in office immediately before the meeting begins, is necessary to 

allow the transaction of corporate business or the making of corporate decisions.  
 
Section 12.  Decision-Making and Voting.   The affirmative vote of at least a fifty-one 

percent (51%) majority of all of the Directors in office is necessary and sufficient to 
make a decision of the Board of Directors of the Homes for Good Foundation unless a 



 

PAGE 3 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

greater proportion is required by law or by these bylaws. An abstention counts as part 
of the total number of votes cast, and does not reduce the number of affirmative votes 

required to pass a motion. 
 
All decisions require a clearly stated motion, a second, and a vote that must be 

recorded in the written minutes. Each member of the Board of Directors will have one 
vote. At the request of any director, the names will be recorded in the minutes of each 

director who voted for, voted against, or abstained on a particular motion. 
 
Section 13.  No Proxy Voting.  No voting by proxy is allowed at any meeting of the 

Board of Directors or as part of reaching any decision of the Board.  
 
Section 14.   Meetings.  The Board must meet at least four times per year, and shall 

strive to do this by meeting at least once each quarter of the year.  Meetings of the 
Board of Directors may be called by the president, the chair of the Board, or 50% of the 
directors in office. Roberts Rules of Order may be consulted for guidance but shall not 

be binding.  
 
Section 15. Executive Session Meetings.  The Board President or the Board by a 

majority vote of the Directors present may at any time decide to go into an Executive 
Session meeting.  Executive Session shall be used when the Board deems it is 
necessary to protect the confidentiality of the matters that will be considered there.    

 
Executive Session meetings may be attended only by members of the Board of 

Directors, and any guests the Board invites to join the meeting, which may include the 
Executive Director, other staff, or any other person the Board wishes to invite. A 
Director may also be excluded from any portion of Executive Session meetings in which 

matters will be considered that present a conflict of interest for that Director.   
 
Minutes shall be properly recorded, but shall only be read or approved at a subsequent 

Executive Session if there is a need to continue to insure the confidentiality of the 
matters contained in the minutes.  The Secretary shall take care to record in the 
minutes only the motions passed and information essential to comply with the law, in 

order to protect the confidential nature of Executive Sessions. 
 
Section 16.  Telephonic Meetings.  Meetings may be held by telephone, video 

conferencing, internet-based communication or other method, as long as all 
participating directors may simultaneously hear and speak with each other.  A director 
participating in such a meeting is deemed present for purposes of a quorum.   

 
Section 17. Decisions by Mail or Email.   
 

(A) Voting by Mail. Any decision that the Board of Directors may make at a meeting 
may be made without a meeting if the decision is approved by the affirmative vote of all 



 

PAGE 4 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

of the Directors of the Board. A clearly stated motion must be sent to all of the 
Directors on the Board by mail or fax, with clear instructions that this process requires 

one hundred percent (100%) of the Directors to vote “yes” for the motion to pass.  
Motions are adopted and effective on the date that all Directors in office have 
responded with an affirmative “yes” vote.  If any Director votes “no,” abstains, or fails 

to vote, then the motion fails to pass.  A printed record of each Director’s vote must be 
kept in the corporate records.   

 
(B) Voting by Email. Voting by email may be authorized by the Board of Directors. 
Unless prohibited or limited by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action 

which may be taken at any annual, regular, or special meeting of the Board of Directors 
may be taken without a meeting by email if: (1) The Corporation has a record of all 
Directors email addresses; and (2) The Corporation maintains a copy of the 

announcement and record of the Director’s votes in the corporate minutes. 
 
The announcement shall be sent to each Director at the email address stored in the 

corporate records and shall include: (1) A description of the action to be taken; (2) A 
deadline to respond with a vote which may not be less than forty-eight (48) hours; (3) 
A statement that a Director may change their vote any time prior to the deadline; and 

(4) An effective date if the action is intended to be effective at a date which is later 
than the deadline date. 
 

The affirmative vote of a majority of all Directors in office is an act of the Board of 
Directors if the action is taken pursuant to this section, unless a greater number of 

affirmative votes for the proposed action is required by law, the Articles of 
Incorporation, or these Bylaws. 
 

Section 18.  Notice of Meetings.  Notice must be given of every meeting of the Board, 
stating the date, time, and location of the meeting, and the purpose of the meeting if 
so required by law or these bylaws. The notice must be given not less than forty eight 

(48) hours in advance of the meeting if delivered by telephone conversation or in 
person, and not less than  seven (7) days in advance if delivered by first class mail, 
email, or fax to an address provided by the individual director.  

 
Regular meetings:  After the initial notice is given of the schedule for a series of regular 
meetings, which will occur at a fixed time and place, no further separate notice is 

required for each of those regular meetings.   Notice must state the time, date, and 
location of the meeting.   The Board may by resolution establish or change the dates of 
regularly scheduled meetings, with proper notice given to all directors. 

Section 19.  Waiver of Notice.  Any director may waive the right to receive full advance 
notice of any meeting.   Waivers of notice must be in writing, signed by the person 
entitled to notice, and given to the secretary to be placed in the corporate records.   

Waivers may be signed before or after the meeting has taken place.  The attendance of 



 

PAGE 5 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

a director at any meeting without specific objection to the notice constitutes a waiver of 
the right to receive full notice of that meeting. 

  
Section 20. Authority of Directors. The President and the Executive Director shall be the 
official spokespersons for the organization, and may represent the organization and its 

positions whenever appropriate. No member of the Board of Directors other than the 
President may officially represent the positions of the organization or speak or act on 

behalf of the organization without specific approval by the Board to do so. 
 
 

 ARTICLE III.  OFFICERS AND STAFF 
  
Section 1.  Officers.  The officers of Homes for Good Foundation must carry out the 

policies and decisions of the Board of Directors as directed by the Board.  Officers must 
include a president, secretary, and treasurer, and may also include a vice 
president/president elect, a chairperson and any other officers the Board may desire. 

The same person may not hold the offices of president and secretary at the same time, 
but the same person may hold any other two offices.  Officers do not have to serve 
simultaneously as members of the Board of Directors.  Officers who are not members of 

the Board have no right to vote on Board decisions. 
 
Section 2.  Election and Term of Office.  The officers of Homes for Good Foundation will 

be elected for a one year term by the Board of Directors.  Election of officers must be 
done as soon as possible following the annual election of directors.  However, unless 

they formally resign or are removed from office, officers will remain in office until their 
successors are properly elected, designated or appointed. There is no limit to the 
number of terms, successive or otherwise, an officer may serve. 

 
Section 3.  Removal.  Any officer elected by the Board of Directors may be removed by 
the Board of Directors whenever, in its judgment, the interests of the corporation would 

be best served by such removal. The person being considered for removal has no vote 
in the process of removal. 
 

Section 4.  Vacancies.  If any office of the corporation becomes vacant by death, 
resignation, retirement, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, the remaining 
directors still in office, although less than a quorum, may elect or appoint an officer to 

fill such a vacancy. The elected officer will hold office for the unexpired portion of the 
term of that office. 
 

Section 5.  President.  The president is the principal officer of the corporation and will, 
in general, supervise or oversee the supervision of all of the affairs of the corporation.  
The president generally will preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors unless the 

Board selects another person to preside.  The president must also perform other duties 



 

PAGE 6 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.  The president may serve as an ex-officio 
member of any committee.  

 
Section 6.  Vice-President/President Elect.  In the absence of the president or in the 
event of the president's inability to act, the vice-president performs the duties of the 

president. The vice-president, when acting as president, has all the powers of and is 
subject to all the restrictions on the president.  The vice-president must also perform 

other duties assigned by the Board of Directors.  More than one position of vice-
president may be created and their duties clarified in an ordinary resolution of the 
Board. 

 
Section 7.  Secretary.  The secretary must perform or oversee the performance of the 
following duties: a) record and keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and 

of the Board of Directors or any Board committees,  b) see that all notices are duly 
given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; c) be 
custodian of the corporate records; d) keep a register of each member’s mailing 

address provided by such member; e) ensure that all required state and federal reports 
are prepared and filed in a timely fashion; and f) perform or oversee all duties incident 
to the office of secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned 

by the president or by the Board of Directors.  The Secretary may delegate some or all 
of these tasks but remains responsible for their proper completion. 
 

Section 8.  Treasurer.  The treasurer must perform or oversee the performance of the 
following duties: a) be responsible for the proper management and control of all funds 

of the corporation; b) prepare full and accurate financial records on a timely basis of all 
of the income, expenses, and assets of the corporation; c) present reports at Board 
meetings on the financial affairs of the corporation; and d) provide financial information 

necessary to prepare and file the required reports to state and federal government 
agencies, showing the income, disbursements, and assets of the corporation.  The 
Treasurer may delegate some or all of these tasks but remains responsible for their 

proper completion. 
 
Section 9.  Chair.  The Board may elect a chair and determine their duties. 

 
Section 10.   Executive Director and Staff. The Board may appoint or employ an 
executive director or other staff, whether paid or unpaid, to perform and conduct the 

programs and activities of the organization. The Board of Directors shall evaluate the 
performance of the Executive Director on an annual basis. Unless the Board determines 
otherwise, the executive director will have the power, subject to the approval of the 

Board of Directors, to hire staff, establish staff duties and performance standards, 
evaluate the performance of staff, and when necessary terminate the employment of 
staff of the corporation. The Executive Director shall receive notice of all Board 

meetings and Executive Committee meetings, and shall ordinarily attend all Board 



 

PAGE 7 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

meetings, except when the Board goes into Executive Session to meet without the 
Executive Director present.  

 
 
 ARTICLE IV.  COMMITTEES 

 
Section 1.  Establishment.  The Board may establish any committee, including standing 

committees or temporary committees, by a resolution of the Board.  Such resolutions 
must name the committee and the purpose of the committee, must state whether it is a 
"Board" committee or a "non-Board" committee, as defined below. 

 
Section 2.  Board Committees.  The Board may establish "Board” committees to which 
are delegated part of the power of the whole Board to authorize expenditures, approve 

amendments to budgets, set policies, and authorize programs or activities.   Such 
committees must be established by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of all 
directors then in office.  Board Committees must consist of two or more directors, and 

they must not have any members who are not members of the Board of Directors.  
Board Committees must follow all of the meeting requirements that the Board of 
Directors itself must follow, including the requirements for proper notice, for having a 

quorum to conduct votes, the passage of motions, the writing of minutes, and the 
subsequent approval and permanent storage of Board Committee minutes.  The Board 
may require further procedures that Board Committees must follow as well.  For all 

Board committees, the Board must pass a resolution that clearly states what powers, 
authority, and duties have been delegated to the committee, who is the chair of the 

committee, and who are the members of the committee.    
  
Section 3.  Non-Board Committees.    

A. The Board may establish "non-Board" committees, including working committees or 
advisory committees, which do not have the power to authorize expenditures, adopt 
budgets, set policy, establish programs, or make decisions for the corporation.  Such 

committees are established through a resolution adopted by the directors present at a 
properly called meeting.  Any person may be a member of such a committee, whether 
or not that person is a member of the Board of Directors.   

 
B. Financial Oversight Committee.  There shall be a committee responsible for financial 
oversight of the organization’s income and expenses, which shall be named the Finance 

and Audit Committee or the Financial Oversight Committee.  The committee must 
consist of two or more persons, including at least one person with some financial 
experience or experience with bookkeeping, who are not the organization’s check 

signers or bookkeepers.  The committee shall be responsible for overseeing the 
organization’s financial transactions and the implementation of the organization’s 
financial policies.  As part of its mission, the committee shall review on a monthly basis, 

or oversee a monthly review of, the organization’s expenditures, financial transactions, 
bank statements, returned checks, and credit card statements.  The committee shall 



 

PAGE 8 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

report any questions or concerns about the organization’s finances to the Board.  The 
committee shall also make the necessary arrangements for and oversee the 

organization’s annual audit or annual financial review, which is described in these 
bylaws. 
 

Section 4.  Committee Members.  The Board must appoint the members of every Board 
committee.  The Board may appoint the members of Non-Board Committees, or 

delegate this task to the President or the Committee Chair.  The term of office of a 
member of a committee will continue until their successor is appointed unless the 
committee is terminated, the member resigns or is removed from the committee, or the 

member ceases to qualify as a member of the committee. 
 
Section 5.  Chair.  One member of each committee will be selected or appointed chair 

by the Board, or if the Board wishes, it may delegate that power to the president or the 
members of the committee. 
 

Section 6.  Committee Procedures.  Unless otherwise specified, Board Committee 
meetings will operate with the same quorum and voting requirements as the full Board, 
and as far as possible will operate according to the procedures of the Board as stated in 

these bylaws.  If any formal decisions or resolutions are voted on at a committee 
meeting, then the votes and the resolutions so adopted must be recorded in the form of 
corporate minutes and filed with the secretary.  

 
Section 7.  Limitation on Powers.  No committee may a) elect, appoint, or remove any 

officer, member of the Board of Directors, or member of a Board committee;  
b) authorize the sale, lease, exchange, or mortgage of all or substantially all of the 
property and assets of the corporation; c) authorize the dissolution of the corporation or 

revoke proceedings therefore; d) amend, alter, or repeal the Articles, the bylaws, or any 
resolution of the Board of Directors; or e) authorize the payment of a dividend or any 
part of the income or profit of the corporation to its directors or officers.   

 
 
 ARTICLE V.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
Section 1.  Compensation of Officers and Directors.  No officer or member of the Board 
of Directors will receive any compensation for fulfilling the responsibilities of a member 

of the Board or of an officer as defined in these bylaws.  However, the corporation may 
pay compensation to officers and members of the Board of Directors for other services 
performed as employees or independent contractors as long as the required rules for 

conflicts of interest are followed.  Board members and their relatives who receive 
regular compensation from the corporation must always constitute less than a majority 
of the Board.  Officers and members of the Board of Directors may receive 

reimbursement for actual expenses they incur in the course of fulfilling their 
responsibilities.  



 

PAGE 9 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

 
Section 2.  Conflicts of Interest.  A conflict of interest is always present whenever the 

corporation pays money or other compensation, or provides any tangible benefits, to an 
officer or member of the Board or to a member of a director’s or officer’s family.  All 
transactions involving conflicts of interest must be approved using the following 

procedures: 1) Conflict of interest transactions must be approved by the full Board of 
Directors; they cannot be approved by the President, Executive Committee, Executive 

Director or other staff. 2) Directors and officers who have a conflict of interest in any 
matter must a) declare the existence of any direct or indirect conflict of interest, b) 
disclose the details of the proposed transaction on the record, c) abstain from voting on 

that matter and d) leave the room where the vote is to take place, until the votes have 
been counted.  The minutes must record this to show that it was done.  3) The rest of 
the Board must analyze the transaction and sufficient information to ensure that all 

transactions involving a conflict of interest are fair to the corporation and that no 
special benefits are being given to any person.  The information relied upon by the 
Board, and its source, must be recorded in the minutes.  4) All conflict-of-interest 

transactions must be approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of all of the 
members of the Board of Directors who do not have a conflict of interest involved in 
that issue, as long as no less than two disinterested directors vote to approve the 

transaction. 
 
Section 3.  Tax Year.  The tax year of the corporation is October 1 - September 30.  

 
Section 4. Financial Controls.  The Board of Directors shall adopt formal Board policies 

that provide a system of financial controls that are adequate to prevent the misuse, 
embezzlement or theft of the organization’s funds and assets, and that would discover 
it if those problems or crimes were to occur.  Those financial policies shall require that 

there must be three separate levels of financial operations, and that those operations 
shall be performed by different people:  1) those with the authority to spend the 
organization’s money; 2) those who are the bookkeeper(s) who record and track the 

income and expenditures; and 3) those who oversee the bookkeeping system and the 
expenditure of funds.  This means that the persons who have authority to sign the 
corporation’s checks or use its credit cards shall not be allowed to also serve as the 

organization’s bookkeeper(s); and that the organization’s bookkeeper(s) shall not be 
given permission or authority to spend the organization’s money, sign its checks or use 
its credit cards.   

 
Section 5.  Annual Financial Assessment.  The Board must require the performance of 
an annual audit, financial review, financial compilation or financial assessment, which 

must involve the services of a trusted person with bookkeeping skills and knowledge, 
who does not do the bookkeeping for the organization or sign checks for the 
organization.  This need not be a formal audit, but must at least involve a sufficiently 

thorough review of the organization’s financial records so that it would likely discover 
any misuse, embezzlement or theft of the organization’s funds or assets. 



 

PAGE 10 - BYLAWS OF HOUSINGPLUS 

The financial oversight committee described above shall select the person performing 
the annual financial assessment and shall ensure that the resulting report is presented 

to the entire board.  
 
Section 6.  No Discrimination.  In the delivery of its services to the public, Homes for 

Good Foundation does not discriminate for or against any person on the basis of 
ethnicity, nationality, place of origin, religion, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, 

familial status, economic status, age, or mental or physical disability. 
 
Section 7.  Written Documents. Wherever these Bylaws require a written document, 

such document may be created, stored, or transmitted by electronic means in lieu of a 
physical, hard, or paper copy of the document. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Corporation shall strive to store corporate documents as both electronic and physical 

documents whenever practicable. 
 
 

 ARTICLE VI.  AMENDMENTS 
 
Section 1.  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.  The affirmative vote of at least two-

thirds of all the Directors in office, at a properly called meeting, at which a quorum is 
present, is necessary and sufficient, to make, alter, amend, or repeal the provisions in 
the bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation dealing with duties and powers and meetings 

of the Board, except as otherwise provided by law. However, only the Board of 
Commissioners of Homes for Good Housing Agency may make amendments which 

would affect or alter the Board of Commissioners power to appoint or remove the Board 
of Directors. Proper written notice must be given in advance, including either a written 
copy of the proposed amendments or a written summary of those amendments.  

 
 
 

 

 
 

 CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the foregoing bylaws constitute the 

bylaws of the Homes for Good Foundation, as duly adopted by the Board of Directors 
on the ____  day of _____, 2020. 
 

Signed this  ____ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 _____________________________ 

 Secretary of the Homes for Good Foundation 
 



 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

ORDER 25-25-06-01H In the Matter of Appointing the Members of 

the Homes for Good Foundation Board of 

Directors. 

 

WHEREAS, according to the Homes for Good Foundation bylaws, the Homes for Good 

Housing Agency Board of Commissioners must appoint Members of the Homes for Good 

Foundation Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, according to the Homes for Good Foundation bylaws, the Board of Directors 

will consist of no fewer than three and no more than fifteen members, and 

WHEREAS, Frankie Lee has expressed interest in joining the Homes for Good Foundation 

Board via an internal staff recruitment application. 

 

NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

Frankie Lee is appointed to the Homes for Good Foundation Board of Directors to serve a 

two-year term. 

 

DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

 

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   





ANNUAL PLAN SUBMISSION



What is a PHA Plan?

The PHA Plan is a comprehensive guide to public housing agency (PHA) 

policies, programs, operations, and strategies for meeting local housing 

needs and goals. 

There are two parts to the PHA Plan: 

1) The 5-Year Plan is submitted to HUD once every five years. It 

describes the PHA mission, long-range goals & objectives, and 

approach to managing programs and providing services for the 

upcoming year.

2) The Annual Plan is submitted to HUD every year. It updates goals & 

objectives in the 5-Year Plan, describes changes & new activities, 

and summarizes changes to program policies.



Why does the PHA Plan matter to me?

The major components of the PHA Plan include policies and procedures for 
each of the major HUD programs: 

Public Housing – Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP)

Housing Choice Voucher Programs – Administrative Plan (Admin Plan)

Changes are made to the ACOP & Admin Plan each year.

As a Moving to Work agency, Homes for Good must also submit an 
MTW Supplement with its Annual Plan each year (new in 2023).

The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) plays an important role in 
reviewing and providing feedback on potential changes. 

• For housing programs not included here, Homes for Good works to align policies across programs as much as 

possible and each program has its own policy and regulatory structure.

• Firwood TSP provides guidance for application and tenant selection. No HUD regulations apply at this project. 

• Multifamily Housing (Abbie Lane, Fourteen Pines, Village Oaks) Tenant Selection Plan provides guidance on 

application and tenant selection. HUD 4350.1 provides regulatory guidance for these projects but does not 

allow PHA level revisions or updates. 



ACOP

• Overview of Housing Agency 
organization and structure

• Overview and history of Public Housing 
Program

• Fair housing and nondiscrimination 
policies

• Policies for persons with disabilities 
and persons with limited English 
proficiency

• Overview of eligibility (Criteria, 
definitions, denial of assistance etc)

• Applications, waiting list and tenant 
selection plans

• Income and rent determinations, 
adjusted income, calculating rent etc. 

• Verification of family information, 
income and eligibility

• Leasing and inspections

• Annual and interim reexaminations

• Pet and animal policies

• Community Service requirements

• Transfer policy

• Lease terminations

• Grievance and appeals

• Program administration and record 
keeping

Guiding document for the Public Housing Program. Includes: 



Admin Plan

• Overview of Housing Agency 
organization and structure

• Overview of Housing Choice Voucher 
Program (Section 8)

• Fair Housing and nondiscrimination 
policies

• Policies for persons with disabilities 
and persons with limited English 
proficiency 

• Overview of eligibility (criteria, 
definitions, denial of assistance, etc.)

• Applications, waiting list and 
selection from waiting list

• Housing Quality Standards and Rent 
Reasonableness Determinations 

• Portability and moving with your 
voucher 

• Annual and interim re-examinations 

• Termination of assistance and 
tenancy 

• Grievance and appeals 

• Program administration and record 
keeping 

• Project Based Voucher (PBV)  and 
Rental Assistance Demonstration 
(RAD) programs

• Emergency Housing Vouchers 

Guiding document for the Section 8 Program. Includes: 



What are our goals for policy review?

Align policies to with our Strategic Equity Plan

❖ Listen to our communities
❖ Tell the human story
❖ Pathways to self-sufficiency
❖ Lead and grow ethically

Reduce barriers to eligibility and program success

Understand and reduce the impact of program rules on participants

Align program policies to simplify participant experiences & 
procedures across programs



When does this process begin and end? 

Jan - Annual Plan First Look

Feb - Annual Plan Orientation & Policy Review Topics

Mar – ACOP, MTW & Admin Plan Review

Homes for Good teams will review and make suggested changes to both sets of these policies. We will then present these 
changes to you so that you can provide feedback.

Apr - Annual Plan "Small Book" Sharing

Homes for Good teams will take your March feedback and review our proposed policy changes again. When we are done, 
all HUD plan materials are assembled into a “Small Book” of changes and required forms.

We will then present what we decided so that you can provide feedback again. Any feedback you provide on the “Small 
Book” will be included as an attachment in the final Annual Plan that we submit to HUD.

A Public Comment Period and Public Hearing will be available for the “Small Book” 
prior to the June Board meeting where we will request that the Board approve our 
proposed PHA Annual Plan.

Our PHA Annual Plan is due to HUD by July 18, 2025.



Input Received:

Resident Advisory Board(RAB) meeting on May 8th2025
Members of the RAB voiced concern regarding the recent regulatory change that, in certain 
cases, requires student loan funds exceeding educational costs to be counted as income. They 
emphasized that this regulation unfairly penalizes low-income individuals who rely on student 
loans to access higher education. Given that these loans already accrue significant interest, 
treating them as income creates an additional and unnecessary financial barrier. This change 
could severely limit educational opportunities for those who can least afford it and discourages 
academic advancement among underserved populations. 

There were no comments from the public during the comment period, or the public 
hearings on June 13th 2025.

Public Comments



Annual Plan FY2026

Link to FY 2026 Annual Plan

../OneDrive - Homes for Good/Documents/Annual Plan/Homes for Good FY26 Annual Plan.pdf


Acronym Key
• PHA – Public Housing Authority

• HUD – Housing and Urban Development

• RAD – Rent assistance demonstration

• HAP – Housing assistance payment

• ACOP – Admissions and Occupancy Plan

• VAWA – Violence against women act

• ADA – Americans with disabilities act

• AMP – Asset managed property

• COC – Continuum of Care

• REAC – Real Estate Assessment Center

• HQS – Housing quality standards

• FMR – Fair market rent

• FSS – Family Self-Sufficiency

• ROSS – Resident opportunity and self-
sufficiency

• HCV – Housing choice voucher

• IDA – Individual development account

• LIHTC – Low income housing tax credit

• LIHEAP – Low income housing energy 
assistance program

• MTW – Moving to work

• NOFA – Notice of funding available

• RAB – Resident advisory board

• PBV – Project based vouchers

• PHA – Public housing authority

• PIC – Public and Indian Housing Information 
Center

• S+C – Shelter Plus Care

• VASH – Veteran’s administration supportive 
housing



Thank You!

Homes. People. Partnerships. Good.



 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Division Director    

 

TITLE: Submittal of the Annual Plan and MTW Supplement 

 

DATE:     June 25, 2025     

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
MOTION:   

Seeking Board Approval to Submit the Annual and MTW Supplement to HUD via the required HUD forms noted 

below. 

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 
 

Homes for Good is seeking Board approval and certification that Homes for Good has complied with the 
applicable requirements listed on the Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations, 
HUD form 50077-ST-HCV-HP and the MTW Certifications of Compliance, HUD form 50075-MTW 

 
B. Background 
 

Homes for Good is required by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility 
Act of 1998 (and ensuing HUD requirements) to submit an Annual Plan to HUD. This 
year we are required to submit an Annual Plan covering FY 2026, which begins 
October 1, 2025, and ends September 30, 2026. 
 
As in previous years, the focus of the Plans is to identify the programs and services provided under the 
Public Housing (PH) and Tenant Based Rental Assistance Programs and to allow public access and 
comment on those programs and services.  
 
The Work Responsibility Act requires public housing authorities work with their Public Housing Resident 
Advisory Boards (RAB) on the planning and development of the Plans. In order 
to meet this requirement, Homes for Good began meeting with the RAB in January 2025. 
Homes for Good is submitting the Plan to the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners for 
deliberation and if approved the Plans will be electronically submission to HUD no later 
than July 18, 2025. 

 
C. Analysis 
 

The submittal of the Annual Plan includes the Move to Work Supplement.  
 



 
Updates on the impact of our current MTW policies: 
 

• Ability to approve Reasonable Accommodations at the PHA level instead of sending such request 
to HUD in Washington D.C.  

o During FY24 37 households utilized this waiver  
o This streamlined process saved approximately 528 hours of wait time   

• Ability to perform Rent Reasonableness studies with PHA staff instead of using a third-party entity  
o 99 were performed by PHA staff 
o $5,985 savings in FY24, and $3,465.00 thus far in FY25 (10.01.24- 03.31.25) by having 

PHA staff complete the task  
• Ability to perform tri-ennial recertification process 

o Approximately $66,410 in cost savings  
o A 6-month snapshot in FY25 saw a reduction of 807 Annual reviews, with a time savings of 

approximately 183 hours per month.   
• Ability to limit Choice Mobility (access to a HCV voucher) for PSH PBV families  

o 17 families expressed an interest in moving  
▪ 8 families participated in a Move on Assessment 
▪ 6 did not meet Move on Readiness benchmarks 
▪ 2 did meet Move on Readiness benchmarks and were referred for an HCV voucher 

 
D. Furtherance of the Access & Opportunity Plan 
 

As we submit our Annual Plan to HUD, we are grounding our approach in the priorities outlined in our 
Access and Opportunity Plan. This strategic framework shapes not only our internal values but also the 
programs, partnerships, and initiatives we commit to. The pillars of our Plan most aligned with our 
Annual Plan include: 
 
Listen to Our Communities 
Community engagement is a foundational part of our planning process. This pillar is directly reflected in 
our Annual Plan through the integration of resident and program participant feedback. Listening allows 
us to understand real-time barriers, identify opportunities for collaboration, and design services that are 
responsive to local needs. Our Annual Plan highlights specific initiatives—such as expanded outreach 
efforts through local preferences that were developed through community conversations. 
 
Create Pathways to Self-Sufficiency 
Our Annual Plan outlines a broad commitment to supporting residents’ long-term stability and success 
beyond housing assistance. While this includes the Family Self-Sufficiency Program, our efforts extend 
further through new service models such as onsite income reviews to help families complete essential 
paperwork, and the continuation of our Homeownership Program. This pillar guides how we design 
programs that not only help residents stay housed—but build toward greater financial independence and 
long-term opportunity. 
 
Lead and Grow Ethically 
Organizational integrity and equity are at the core of how we operate. Our Annual Plan reflects this 
through expanded use of technology to reduce access barriers and lower our environmental impact. This 
includes adding options for electronic document submittal to reduce paper use and offer more accessible 
forms of communication. These efforts demonstrate our commitment to operating in a way that is 
transparent, responsible, and aligned with the values of equity and sustainability. 
 



 
By integrating pillars into our HUD Annual Plan, we ensure that our planning and reporting processes 
reflect not just regulatory requirements, but a deeper mission to serve equitably, act responsibly, and 
remain community-driven in all aspects of our work. 

 
E. Alternatives & Other Options 
 

HUD requires submission of the Plans by July 18, 2025. Should the board choose not to approve the Plans 
at this time exploration of an emergency board meeting before the July 18th deadline may be an option.  
 
Homes for Good provided the required public hearings for the Plans on June 13, 2025. No comments were 
received.   

 
F. Timing & Implementation 
 

A copy of the Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations, HUD from 50077 and 
the MTW Certifications of Compliance, HUD form 50075-MTW will be submitted to HUD upon written 
approval by the Homes for Good Chair.  
 
Upon approval by the Board, Homes for Good will submit the 
Plans and aforementioned certifications to HUD. 

  
G. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the board approve the request to submit the Annual and 5 Year Plans to HUD.  

H. Follow Up 
 

Homes for Good will revise its Plans in response to regulatory changes under HOTMA and will 
engage the board as applicable when said changes come into effect. 

 
I. Attachments 

Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations, HUD form 50077-ST-HCV-HP  
MTW Certifications of Compliance, HUD form 50075-MTW 
PHA Annual Plan Small Book 

 

 
 



MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan OMB No. 2577-0226 
Expires:  9/30/2027 

Page 20 of 29  form HUD-50075-MTW (9/2024)

MTW CERTIFICATIONS OF COMPLIANCE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING 

Certifications of Compliance with Regulations: 
Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Moving to Work Public Housing Agency (MTW PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson 
or other authorized MTW PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the MTW Supplement to the Annual 
PHA Plan for the MTW PHA Fiscal Year beginning (DD/MM/YYYY), hereinafter referred to as "the MTW Supplement", of which this 
document is a part and make the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in 
connection with the submission of the MTW Supplement and implementation thereof: 

(1) The PHA made the proposed MTW Supplement and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least
45 days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the MTW Supplement and
invited public comment.

(2) The MTW PHA took into consideration public and resident comments (including those of its Resident Advisory Board(s) or tenant
associations, as applicable) before approval of the MTW Supplement by the Board of Commissioners or Board of Directors in order to
incorporate any public comments into the annual MTW Supplement.

(3) The MTW PHA certifies that the Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the budget for the Capital Fund Program grants contained
in the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1 (or successor form as required by
HUD).

(4) The MTW PHA will carry out the MTW Supplement in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d-
4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and Title II of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.), the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291 et seq.), and all regulations
implementing these authorities; and other applicable Federal, State, and local civil rights laws.

(5) The MTW Supplement is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such
strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.

(6) The MTW Supplement contains a signed certification by the appropriate State or local official (form HUD-50077-SL) that the Plan is
consistent with the applicable Consolidated Plan, which includes any applicable fair housing goals or strategies for the MTW PHA's
jurisdiction and a description of the way the MTW Supplement is consistent with the applicable Consolidated Plan (24 CFR 91.2, 91.225,
91.325, and 91.425).

(7) The MTW PHA will affirmatively further fair housing in compliance with the Fair Housing Act, 24 CFR 5.150 et. seq, 24 CFR 903.7(o),
and 24 CFR 903.15, which means that it will take meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of
segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity based on protected characteristics.
Specifically, affirmatively furthering fair housing requires meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant disparities in
housing needs and in access to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with truly integrated and balanced living patterns,
transforming racially or ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity, and fostering and maintaining compliance with
civil rights and fair housing laws. 24 CFR 5.151.  The MTW PHA certifies that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its
obligation to affirmatively further fair housing.

(8) The MTW PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
and HUD’s implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 146.

(9) In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Act’s prohibition on sex discrimination, which includes sexual orientation and gender
identity, and 24 CFR 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the MTW PHA will not base a determination of eligibility for housing based
on actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status and will not otherwise discriminate because of sex (including
sexual orientation and gender identity), will make no inquiries concerning the gender identification or sexual orientation of an applicant for
or occupant of HUD-assisted housing.

(10) The MTW PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, ‘Policies and Procedures for the
Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped’ for people with physical disabilities.

(11) The MTW PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment
Opportunities for Low- or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

(12) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to a drug free workplace required by 24 CFR Part 24, Subpart F.

(13) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to compliance with restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR Part 87,
together with disclosure forms if required by this Part, and with restrictions on payments to influence Federal Transactions, in accordance
with the Byrd Amendment.

(14) The MTW PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.



MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan OMB No. 2577-0226 
Expires:  9/30/2027 

 

 Page 21 of 29                                                               form HUD-50075-MTW (9/2024) 

(15) The MTW PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24 CFR 
5.105(a). 

 

(16) The MTW PHA will provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation needed to carry out its review under the National 
Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58. Regardless of who acts as the responsible 
entity, the MTW PHA will maintain documentation that verifies compliance with environmental requirements pursuant to 24 Part 58 and 
24 CFR Part 50 and will make this documentation available to HUD upon its request. 

 

(17) With respect to public housing and applicable local, non-traditional development the MTW PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD 
determined wage rate requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act. 

 

(18) The MTW PHA will keep records in accordance with 2 CFR 200.333-200.337 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance 
with program requirements. 

 

(19) The MTW PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24 CFR Part 35. 
 

(20) The MTW PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. 
 

(21) The MTW PHA must fulfill its responsibilities to comply with and ensure enforcement of housing quality standards as required in PIH 
Notice 2011-45, or successor notice, for any local, non-traditional program units. The MTW PHA must fulfill its responsibilities to comply 
with and ensure enforcement of Housing Quality Standards, as defined in 24 CFR Part 982, for any Housing Choice Voucher units under 
administration. 

 

(22) The MTW PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Moving to Work Operations Notice in a manner consistent 
with its MTW Supplement and will utilize covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the Moving to Work 
Operations Notice and included in its MTW Supplement. MTW Waivers activities being implemented by the agency must fall within the 
safe harbors outlined in Appendix I of the Moving to Work Operations Notice and/or HUD approved Agency-Specific or Safe Harbor 
Waivers. 

 

(23) All attachments to the MTW Supplement have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the MTW 
Supplement is available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along 
with the MTW Supplement and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations 
identified by the MTW PHA in its MTW Supplement and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the 
MTW PHA and should be made available electronically, upon request. 

 
 
 

_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
MTW PHA NAME MTW PHA NUMBER/HA CODE 
 

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct.  WARNING: Anyone who 
knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, including confinement for up to 5 
years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties.  (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 1010, 1012, 1014; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802).  

 
 

_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL TITLE 
 
 

_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
SIGNATURE DATE 
* Must be signed by either the Chairperson or Secretary of the Board of the MTW PHA's legislative body.  This certification cannot be 

signed by an employee unless authorized by the MTW PHA Board to do so.  If this document is not signed by the Chairperson or 
Secretary, documentation such as the by-laws or authorizing board resolution must accompany this certification. 

 



                                                                  Page  of 1 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

 
 
 

 PHA Name : Housing Authority & Comm Svcs Of Lane Co  

 PHA Code : OR006
 MTW Supplement for PHA Fiscal Year Beginning : (MM/DD/YYYY): 10/1/2025

PHA Program Type:  Combined
MTW Cohort Number: Landlord Incentives 
MTW Supplement Submission Type:  Annual Submission

 
 



                                                                  Page  of 2 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

B. MTW Supplement Narrative.
 
Homes for Good has a strong commitment and track record for bringing collaborative and innovative projects to the
community. Homes for Good’s initial MTW Supplement aimed to align the needs of the community and residents with the
three (3) MTW Statutory Objectives in ways that help transform operations, encourage self-sufficiency, and better utilize the
funding it receives. Since its last MTW Supplement, Homes for Good has decreased the amount of time it takes households
to find and lease a suitable unit, saved approximately $84,820 in administrative costs, and enabled 37 of households with
reasonable accommodations to find housing easier using an Exception Payment Standard. 

Cost Effectiveness: Homes for Good is dedicated to exploring MTW flexibility options such as implementing triennial reviews
and eliminating deductions and/or modifying the HQS inspection schedule. Some of the waivers associated with cost
effectiveness have already been implemented or will be implemented in the next Fiscal Year. Waivers related to
cost-effectiveness allow Homes for Good to redirect staff time and resources toward activities that have a higher value for the
participant and the community. 

Self-Sufficiency: Homes for Good envisions the agency automatically enrolling households into its Self-Sufficiency Program
upon participant entry, resulting in a dramatic increase in participation. While this years’ MTW Supplement does not include
modifications to the FSS program, Homes for Good plans to work internally to design the program and select the appropriate
waivers in the future. 

Housing Choice: Homes for Good is dedicated to exploring mortgage assistance and expanded homeownership programs.
We believe homeownership is a key element in ending generational poverty. Homes for Good is also interested in increasing
utilization of project-based vouchers. During FY2023, Homes for Good implemented several waivers that help streamline the
use of project-based vouchers. While Homes for Good did not add any project-based vouchers in FY2025, these flexibilities
will help the agency streamline the process of adding additional PBV units in the future. 

As a member of the Landlord Incentives cohort of the Moving to Work program, Homes for Good implemented Pre-Qualifying
Unit Inspections and Alternate Inspection Schedule. These are described in more detail in Section C of the MTW
Supplement. 

Homes for Good implemented other MTW flexibilities in its first year as an MTW agency as well. The activities selected for
the year were prioritized using the following three objectives: 

Reallocate resources to reduce paperwork and refocus staff efforts on navigation and prevention. Serve the greatest number
of households possible through new affordable housing and housing service programs that help individuals in need and
communities thrive; and activities implemented will further Homes for Good’s Strategic Equity Plan by creating pathways to
self-sufficiency and leading and growing ethically. 

All activities entered into the FY26 MTW Supplement have been implemented. However, note that Homes for Good decided
to hold off on implementing waiver 3.a for Public Housing until HUD is ready for MTW agencies to submit their 50058 records
to the new Housing Information Portal (HIP).



                                                                  Page  of 3 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

C. The policies that the MTW agency is using or has used (currently implement, plan to implement in the
submission year, plan to discontinue, previously discontinued).
1. Tenant Rent Policies
a. Tiered Rent (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. Tiered Rent (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
c. Stepped Rent (PH) Not Currently Implemented
d. Stepped Rent (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
e. Minimum Rent (PH) Not Currently Implemented
f. Minimum Rent (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
g. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross Income
(PH)

Not Currently Implemented

h. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross Income
(HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

i. Alternative Utility Allowance (PH) Not Currently Implemented
j. Alternative Utility Allowance (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
k. Fixed Rents (PH) Not Currently Implemented
l. Fixed Subsidy (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
m. Utility Reimbursements (PH) Not Currently Implemented
n. Utility Reimbursements (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
o. Initial Rent Burden (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
p. Imputed Income (PH) Not Currently Implemented
q. Imputed Income (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
r. Elimination of Deduction(s) (PH) Not Currently Implemented
s. Elimination of Deduction(s) (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
t. Standard Deductions (PH) Not Currently Implemented
u. Standard Deductions (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
v. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (PH) Not Currently Implemented
w. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
2. Payment Standards and Rent Reasonableness
a. Payment Standards- Small Area Fair Market Rents (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b. Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV) Currently Implementing
c. Rent Reasonableness – Process (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
d. Rent Reasonableness – Third-Party Requirement (HCV) Currently Implementing
3. Reexaminations
a. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households
(HCV)

Currently Implementing

c. Self-Certification of Assets (PH) Not Currently Implemented
d. Self-Certification of Assets (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
4. Landlord Leasing Incentives
a. Vacancy Loss (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance) Not Currently Implemented
b. Damage Claims (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance) Not Currently Implemented
c. Other Landlord Incentives (HCV- Tenant-based
Assistance)

Not Currently Implemented

5. Housing Quality Standards (HQS)
a. Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections (HCV) Currently Implementing
b. Reasonable Penalty Payments for Landlords (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
c. Third-Party Requirement (HCV) Currently Implementing
d. Alternative Inspection Schedule (HCV) Currently Implementing
6. Short-Term Assistance
a. Short-Term Assistance (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. Short-Term Assistance (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
7. Term-Limited Assistance
a. Term-Limited Assistance (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. Term-Limited Assistance (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
8. Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)



                                                                  Page  of 4 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV) Not Currently Implemented
9. Project-Based Voucher Program Flexibilities
a. Increase PBV Program Cap (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b. Increase PBV Project Cap (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
c. Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned
Projects Without Improvement, Development, or
Replacement (HCV)

Currently Implementing

d. Alternative PBV Selection Process (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
e. Alternative PBV Unit Types (Shared Housing and
Manufactured Housing) (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

f. Increase PBV HAP Contract Length (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
g. Increase PBV Rent to Owner (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
h. Limit Portability for PBV Units (HCV) Currently Implementing
10. Family Self-Sufficiency Program with MTW Flexibility
a.PH Waive Operating a Required FSS Program (PH) Not Currently Implemented
a.HCV Waive Operating a Required FSS Program (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b.PH Alternative Structure for Establishing Program
Coordinating Committee (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b. HCV Alternative Structure for Establishing Program
Coordinating Committee (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

c.PH Alternative Family Selection Procedures (PH) Not Currently Implemented
c.HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
d.PH Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation (PH) Not Currently Implemented
d.HCV Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation
(HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

e.PH Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income
(PH)

Not Currently Implemented

e.HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income
(HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

11. MTW Self-Sufficiency Program
a.PH Alternative Family Selection Procedures (PH) Not Currently Implemented
a.HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b.PH Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income
(PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b.HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income
(HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

12. Work Requirement
a. Work Requirement (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. Work Requirement (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
13. Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for Economic Progress (PH)
Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for Economic
Progress (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

14. Moving on Policy
a. Waive Initial HQS Inspection Requirement (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b.PH Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b.HCV Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies
(HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

c.PH Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between
Partner Agencies (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

c.HCV Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between
Partner Agencies (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

15. Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH)
Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH) Not Currently Implemented
16. Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing Policy (PH)
Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing Policy (PH) Not Currently Implemented
17. Local, Non-Traditional Activities
a. Rental Subsidy Programs Not Currently Implemented
b. Service Provision Not Currently Implemented



                                                                  Page  of 5 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

c. Housing Development Programs Not Currently Implemented

C. MTW Activities Plan that Housing Authority & Comm Svcs Of Lane Co Plans to Implement in the Submission Year
or Is Currently Implementing
 

2.b. - Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
Homes for Good will use this waiver to allow the PHA to self-certify exception payment standards (EPS) in the case of
reasonable accommodation. This waiver will increase the housing opportunities of our HCV Program participants needing
accessibility features requiring a reasonable accommodation. 
 
EPS’s are those that are above 120% and currently require approval of the HUD field office. Homes for Good proposes
using its MTW flexibility to allow it to self-certify EPS’s (up to 150% of FMR) in the case of a reasonable accommodation.
The current process to approve EPS’s through the field office is time consuming and burdensome for the family, the
housing agency, and HUD, and many times while approval was pending, the unit becomes unavailable. Units with
accessibility features typically have significantly higher rents and, without an expedited approval of the EPS, households

with accessibility needs are severely limited in their housing options.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Increased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

Other – another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.

This waiver will impact households with approved reasonable accommodations in the Housing Choice Voucher program

who are searching for units with accessibility features.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
A total of 37 households with Reasonable Accommodations (RAs) were housed using the Exception Payment Standards
(EPS) method during October 1, 2024, thru March 24, 2025. This streamlined process saved families and Homes for Good



                                                                  Page  of 6 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

staff approximately 528 hours with Homes for Good using its MTW flexibility to approve these EPS over 120% of Fair

Market Rent (FMR).

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?

Yes

This document is attached.

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?

Yes

Please list all of the applicable MTW activities. (Only upload hardship policy once when said policy applies to
multiple MTW activities.)
3.a. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (PH); 3.b. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households

(HCV)

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?

No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

Yes 

What is the status of the Safe Harbor Waiver request?

The waiver request is being submitted for review with this submission of the MTW Supplement (see Section D).

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?

Yes

This document is attached.

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?

No

Please explain the payment standards by FMR:
EPS’s are those that are above 120% and currently require approval of the HUD field office. Homes for Good proposes

using its MTW flexibility to allow it to self-certify EPS’s (up to 150% of FMR) in the case of a reasonable accommodation.

   
2.d. - Rent Reasonableness – Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
Homes for Good will use this waiver to eliminate the requirement that the PHA use a third-party entity to perform
rent-reasonableness determinations for units and properties the agency owns, manages, or controls. 

Procuring and overseeing a third-party contractor for rent reasonableness is costly and time-consuming for the agency.



                                                                  Page  of 7 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

Instead, Homes for Good will apply its current rent reasonableness process for non-owned/managed units to units it owns
and manages. This process has adequate controls in place to ensure uniformity, auditability, transparency, and fairness of

the determination.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Decreased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
The cost saved by performing rent reasonableness internally for units owned or managed by Homes for Good has gone

from $5,985 in FY24 to $3,465 during the first part of FY25 (10/1/24-3/31/25).

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

Please explain or upload a description of the quality assurance method.
Quality assurance is built into Homes for Goods process because the agency uses a third-party app that bases its results
on objective measures. The comparables provided to establish rent reasonableness are documented within each tenant

file. 

No document is attached.

Please explain or upload a description of the rent reasonableness determination method.
Homes for Good will continue to use Nelrod’s EZ Reasonable Rent Determinations (EZRRD) software to perform rent
reasonableness determinations. EZRRD uses its five-method analysis system to compare multiple features per unit for a
more in-depth analysis, and automatically identifies the three best comparables based on the system’s objective market

analysis.

No document is attached.

   
3.b. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
Homes for Good will implement a triennial recertification policy for elderly and disabled households in both its Public
Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs. This will benefit the client and the PHA by reducing the burden of the
regular review cycle. Homes for Good plans to implement this policy in the Housing Choice Voucher program first, then
implement in the Public Housing program the following year. 

Waiving these provisions will allow Homes for Good to implement a triennial recertification policy for elderly and disabled
households in both its Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs. This will benefit the client and the PHA by
reducing the burden of the regular review cycle. Homes for Good plans to implement this policy in the Housing Choice
Voucher program first, then implement in the Public Housing program the following year. 

To address changes in household circumstances, Homes for Good will continue to allow interims for households per its



                                                                  Page  of 8 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

interim policies described at the end of the waiver.
Homes for Good does not request to waive any of the safe harbors related to this waiver and will operate within the
following safe harbors: 

Reexaminations must occur at least every three years. 
The agency must allow at least one interim adjustment per year at the request of the household, if the household gross
income has decreased 10% or more. 
Agency must implement an impact analysis. 

Agency must include a hardship policy.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Decreased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

Elderly families; Disabled families (to the extent those families are not exempt via a reasonable accommodation); Other –

another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.

Elderly and/or disabled families on fixed income

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the MTW
activity.

Applies to any tenant based or project based household that is a family of elderly and/or disabled status with fixed income.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
Due to the delayed implementation of HIP for 50058 processing Homes for Good held off on implementing alternative
reexaminations for Public Housing. Once HIP has been implemented and housing authorities no longer need to hold
50058’s in preparation for HIP, Homes for Good will begin implementing this waiver for HIP. 

Since implementation of tri-reexaminations for the Housing Choice Voucher Program the administrative cost savings has

been approximately $66,410.



                                                                  Page  of 9 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?

Yes

This document is attached.

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?

Yes

Please list all of the applicable MTW activities. (Only upload hardship policy once when said policy applies to
multiple MTW activities.)
3.a. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (PH); 3.b. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households

(HCV)

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?

No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?

Yes

This document is attached.

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?

Yes

Please list all of the applicable MTW activities. (Only upload impact analysis once when said impact analysis
applies to multiple MTW activities.)
3.a. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (PH); 3.b. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households
(HCV)

What is the recertification schedule? 

Once every three years

How many interim recertifications per year may a household request?

2 or more

Please describe briefly how the MTW agency plans to address changes in family/household circumstances under
the alternative reexamination schedule.

Homes for Good interim policies are as follows: 
• Homes for Good will allow households to request an interim if the household’s income decreases. 
• Homes for Good will not require a household to report increases in income or changes. 
• Homes for Good will apply the most recent payment standard during the interim, reducing the likelihood that a rent
increase negatively impacts the rent burden of the household.

Note that under HOTMA, HUD requires the increased payment standard to be applied no later than the earliest of: 

a. The effective date of an increase in the gross rent that would result in an increase in the family share; 



                                                                  Page  of 10 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

b. The family’s first regular or interim reexamination; or 
c. One year following the effective date of the increase in the payment standard amount. 

Note that under Homes for Good’s policy and associated MTW waiver, c) above may not always be met since the payment
standard will not be applied until the next review, unless the household has an interim for other reasons. Therefore, Homes
for Good amends this waiver to add 24 CFR 982.505(c)(4) to the list of policies that it waives.

   
5.a. - Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
As part of the requirements of the Landlord Incentive cohort, Homes for Good (HFG) must select two (2) MTW activities
related to landlord incentives in its initial plan year. One of the activities HFG selected is Waiver 5.a, Pre-Qualifying Unit
Inspections.

HFG’s landlord outreach revealed a strong desire among landlords to reduce the time it takes to approve the Request for
Tenancy Approval (RFTA) during the lease-up process. Inspections for new move-ins typically happen once the RFTA is
approved but prior to the tenant moving into the unit. Since the scheduling of the inspection and the potential for failures
and re-inspections takes time, the current process can delay the move-in. The Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections MTW
activity will allow HFG to perform the inspection earlier in the process, enabling the household to move into the unit once
the RFTA is approved.

HFG does not request waiving any of the safe harbors for this activity, which are listed below: 
The pre-inspection must have been conducted within 90 days of the participant occupying the unit. 
The participant must be able to request an interim inspection. 

HQS inspection standards must not be altered as found at 24 C.F.R. 982.401.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Increased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions (i.e., applicants) only

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies to all family types

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
The number of pre-qualifying unit inspections approved in FY2024 was 3 and is currently at 2 pre-qualifying unit
inspections for the first part of FY25 (10/1/24-3/31/25). 

In FY24 the average time to approve a Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA) unit for pre-inspection was 9.6 days



                                                                  Page  of 11 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

compared to 12 days average for regular inspection. Thus far the FY25 current average for pre-inspection is 7.5 days.

Data for regular inspection for this FY is not currently available.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

How long is the pre-inspection valid for?

The pre-inspection is valid for 90 days.

   
5.c. - Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
Homes for Good will eliminate the requirement that the PHA use a third-party entity to perform Housing Quality Standard
(HQS) inspections on units and properties the agency owns, manages, or controls. 

Procuring and overseeing a third-party contractor for HQS inspections services is costly and time-consuming for the
agency. Instead, Homes for Good will utilize its in-house HQS inspection team and the policies and procedures governing
HQS inspections for the Housing Choice Voucher program. The HQS inspection process has built-in quality control
measures in place that will help to ensure the inspections performed at properties owned or managed by Homes for Good
are uniform fair and that the process is transparent and auditable. We conduct monitoring inspections to verify that the
units comply with the required HQS and/or NSPIRE standards. These inspections are carried out by PHA staff who were
not involved in the initial inspection. This practice ensures a high level of quality control by providing an independent
review of the units.

Homes for Good does not request to waive any of the safe harbors related to this waiver and will operate within the
following safe harbors: 

The agency shall establish and make available a quality assurance method to ensure an objective analysis. 
The participant must be able to request an interim inspection. 
HQS inspection standards must not be altered as found at 24 C.F.R. 982.401. 
At the Department’s request, the agency must obtain the services of a third-party entity to determine if PHA-owned units

pass HQS.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Increased revenue; Decreased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies to all family types



                                                                  Page  of 12 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

The MTW activity applies to all properties with project-based vouchers

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
The estimated savings on Inspections for the first part of FY25 (10/1/24-4/3/25) is approximately $15,890. (Please note

cost varies per unit size, location, and whether a reinspection (RI) is needed for estimation).

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

Please explain or upload the description of the quality assurance method:

Following will explain the quality assurance method
In conducting quality control, PHA supervisory staff will use a random selection process to determine which units will be
inspected for compliance with HQS and/or NSPIRE standards, as applicable. 

The review of these randomly selected units will be performed by PHA staff who were not involved in the initial inspection,
ensuring a high level of quality assurance through independent evaluation. 

Additionally, upon request from HUD, PHA will provide further oversight by engaging a third-party inspector who is not a

PHA staff member.

No document is attached.

   
5.d. - Alternative Inspection Schedule (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
As part of the requirements of the Landlord Incentive cohort, Homes for Good (HFG) must select two (2) MTW activities
related to landlord incentives in its initial plan year. One of the activities HFG selected is Waiver 5.d, Alternative Inspection
Schedule.

Implementing an alternative schedule for Housing Quality Standard (HQS) inspections would increase inspector bandwidth
for performing pre-inspections, re-inspections, and responding timeline to special inspection requests. HFG estimates that
the increased bandwidth would allow inspectors to complete HQS inspections within 1-2 business days of the landlord
contacting HFG. 

This activity will allow HFG to inspect its HCV units every three (3) years instead of annually or biennially. In lieu of the
regular annual or biennial inspection, HFG hired a full-time Landlord Liaison to
1) Field calls from applicants and tenants who are searching for housing,
2) Work with tenants who have concerns or questions regarding their existing housing,
3) Work with landlords to address concerns and understand the housing standards each unit must meet. 

With a Landlord Educator on staff, HFG is confident that HQS concerns and/or questions that may arise between
inspections will be addressed through landlord and tenant outreach or special inspections, as both tenants and landlords

have a dedicated communication channel to voice concerns.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.



                                                                  Page  of 13 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

Neutral (no cost implications) 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
The reduction in the amount of time it takes to approve a unit for move-ins has decreased from an average of 57 days to
53 days between CY 2023 to 2024. 

The number of special inspections conducted in FY24 was 8, and thus far for FY25 is currently 5 (10/1/24-3/31/25). 

The number of interactions between Homes for Good’s landlord educator and landlords or tenants has increased from two
events to nine events thus far in FY2025. There have been 374 additional interactions, such as phone calls and emails,

between the landlord educator and landlords or tenants between October 1, 2024 thru March 31, 2025.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

   
9.c. - Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned Projects Without Improvement, Development, or
Replacement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
Homes for Good implemented this waiver to allow Homes for Good to award project-based vouchers to non-Public
Housing properties it owns without a selection process and without engaging in an initiative to improve, develop, or replace
a Public Housing property or site. This waiver does not apply to other HUD-required selection requirements and the
agency will ensure that the process to award vouchers is uniform and transparent.

Homes for Good will operate within the following safe harbors: 

A subsidy layering review must be conducted. 
The agency must complete site selection requirements. 
HQS inspections must be performed by an independent entity according to 24 C.F.R. 983.59(b) or 24 C.F.R. 983.103(f)
unless MTW 5.c is implemented.
The agency is subject to Notice PIH 2013-27 where applicable, or successor. 

Property must be owned by a single-asset entity of the agency, see Notice PIH 2017-21.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Decreased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
There were no non-Public Housing properties owned by Homes for Good that were selected for project-based vouchers



                                                                  Page  of 14 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

without a competitive process in FY25

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No 

   
9.h. - Limit Portability for PBV Units (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative
The Lane County Housing Authority (LCHA) (aka Homes for Good) requests to waive a safe harbor requirement under
MTW Waiver 9.h., Limit Portability for PBV Unit. Under the activity Homes for Good will waive the requirement of providing
a tenant-based voucher at 12 months when requested by a PBV household. As a safe harbor to the activity, portability
cannot be restricted for more than 24 months. Homes for Good is seeking to waive this safe harbor and restrict mobility for
its Permanent Supportive Housing PBV households with respect to a household’s readiness to move. Homes for Good
intends to offer portability to PSH PBV via a local preference based on scoring under Homes for Good's Move On
assessment tool. Under this framework the overall timeframe for access to the tenant-based voucher is amended to allow
for TBVs to be provided before 12 months or after 24 months, but no longer than 36 months.

Waiving the portability requirement will lower the cost of turning units for households moving to a tenant-based voucher,
help the PBV project to cashflow by continuing to assist households, decrease the administrative burden associated with
program unit transfers, and ensure that households on Homes for Good's waitlists are offered a tenant-based voucher first.

Homes for Good previously received approval to waive the following Safe Harbor: Portability under this activity must not be

restricted for more than 24 months.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based on
what you know today.

Increased revenue; Decreased expenditures 

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

Currently assisted households only

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

Other – another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.

Families living in Permanent Supportive Housing Project Based Voucher Units

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?



                                                                  Page  of 15 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the MTW
activity.

Only applies to families living in Permanent Supportive Housing Project Based Voucher Units

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description about
what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
No families have moved out of a PSH PBV project with a Housing Choice Voucher (HCV). Currently, only one family (PBV
at Nel) is sitting on the Choice Mobility waitlist. Homes for Good currently does not have a tenant-based voucher to issue
this family 

An additional 17 families have expressed interest in moving out of Homes for Good PSH PBV projects. Of these families 8
have participated in a Move on Assessment to determine eligibility. Of those 8 families 6 did not meet the “Move on
Readiness” benchmarks and are actively working with supportive services to meet the necessary requirements, the other

two families were determined to be “Move on Ready” and their referrals were sent to exercise portability.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

Yes 

What is the status of the Safe Harbor Waiver request?

The waiver was previously approved.

Please describe the extent to which the Safe Harbor Waiver is supporting the MTW agency's goal in implementing
this MTW activity.

Homes for Good requests to waive the following safe harbor. Detailed information related to this safe harbor waiver

request are included in Section D of the MTW Supplement to the PHA Plan. 

i. Portability under this activity must not be restricted for more than 24 months. 

Homes for Good not request to waive any other safe harbors related to this waiver and will operate within the following

safe harbors: 

i. The agency must have a clear and uniform policy in place to address how move requests are received and how they are

approved/denied for PBV households. 

ii. Participants must still retain the ability to request a tenant-based voucher for reasonable accommodation according to

existing rules.

   



                                                                  Page  of 16 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

D. Safe Harbor Waivers.

D.1
Will the MTW agency submit request for approval of a Safe Harbor Waiver this year?  
 
Yes, the Safe Harbor Waiver request(s) for 2b, 9h is(are) attached.

 
 
 

E. Agency-Specific Waiver(s).

E.1

Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for HUD Approval:  
 
The MTW demonstration program is intended to foster innovation and HUD encourages MTW agencies, in
consultation with their residents and stakeholders, to be creative in their approach to solving affordable housing
issues facing their local communities. For this reason, flexibilities beyond those provided for in Appendix I may
be needed. Agency-Specific Waivers may be requested if an MTW agency wishes to implement additional
activities, or waive a statutory and/or regulatory requirement not included in Appendix I.

In order to pursue an Agency-Specific Waiver, an MTW agency must include an Agency-Specific Waiver
request, an impact analysis, and a hardship policy (as applicable), and respond to all of the mandatory core
questions as applicable.

For each Agency-Specific Waiver(s) request, please upload supporting documentation, that includes: a) a full
description of the activity, including what the agency is proposing to waive (i.e., statute, regulation, and/or
Operations Notice), b) how the initiative achieves one or more of the 3 MTW statutory objectives, c) a
description of which population groups and household types that will be impacted by this activity, d) any cost
implications associated with the activity, e) an implementation timeline for the initiative, f) an impact analysis, g)
a description of the hardship policy for the initiative, and h) a copy of all comments received at the public
hearing along with the MTW agency's description of how the comments were considered, as a required
attachment to the MTW Supplement.

  Will the MTW agency submit a request for approval of an Agency-Specific Waiver this year?
No



                                                                  Page  of 17 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

E.2

Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for which HUD Approval has been Received:
 
Does the MTW agency have any approved Agency-Specific Waivers?
No

 
 
 

F. Public Housing Operating Subsidy Grant Reporting.

F.1 Total Public Housing Operating subsidy amount authorized, disbursed by 9/30, remaining, and deadline for
disbursement, by Federal Fiscal Year for each year the PHA is designated an MTW agency.

 

Federal Fiscal Year
(FFY)

Total Operating
Subsidy Authorized

Amount

How Much PHA
Disbursed by the 9/30

Reporting Period

Remaining Not Yet
Disbursed

Deadline

2022 $2,106,617 $2,106,617 $0 2030-09-30
2023 $1,710,993 $1,515,064 $195,929 2031-09-30
2024 $2,475,046 $2,407,233 $639,169 2032-09-30
2025 $1,983,264 $1,926,063 $696,370 2033-09-30



                                                                  Page  of 18 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

G. MTW Statutory Requirements.

G.1

75% Very Low Income – Local, Non-Traditional.  
 
HUD will verify compliance with the statutory requirement that at least 75% of the households assisted by the
MTW agency are very low-income for MTW public housing units and MTW HCVs through HUD systems. The
MTW PHA must provide data for the actual families housed upon admission during the PHA's most recently
completed Fiscal Year for its Local, Non-Traditional program households.

Income Level
Number of Local, Non-Traditional Households Admitted in
the Fiscal Year*

80%-50% Area Median Income 0

49%-30% Area Median Income 0

Below 30% Area Median Income 0

Total Local, Non-Traditional Households 0

 
*Local, non-traditional income data must be provided in the MTW Supplement form until such time that it can be submitted in
IMS-PIC or other HUD system.  

G.2 Establishing Reasonable Rent Policy.

 
Has the MTW agency established a rent reform policy to encourage employment and self-sufficiency?
No

Please describe the MTW agency's plans for its future rent reform activity and the implementation timeline.
N/A

 

G.3 Substantially the Same (STS) – Local, Non-Traditional.

The total number of unit months that
families were housed in a local,
non-traditional rental subsidy for the
prior full calendar year.

0 # of unit months

The total number of unit months that
families were housed in a local,
non-traditional housing development
program for the prior full calendar
year.

0 # of unit months

 
Number of units developed under the local, non-traditional housing development activity that were available for
occupancy during the prior full calendar year:

PROPERTY
NAME/

ADDRESS

0/1
BR

2
BR

3
BR

4
BR

5
BR

6+
BR

TOTAL
UNITS

POPULATION
TYPE*

if
'Population

Type' is
Other

# of
Section

504
Accessible
(Mobility)**

# of Section
504

Accessible
(Hearing/
Vision)

Was this Property Made
Available for Initial

Occupancy during the
Prior Full Calendar Year?

What was the Total
Amount of MTW

Funds Invested into
the Property?

 

G.4 Comparable Mix (by Family Size) – Local, Non-Traditional.



                                                                  Page  of 19 19                                                          (01/2021)form HUD-50075-MTW

To demonstrate compliance with the statutory requirement to continue serving a 'comparable mix" of families by family
size to that which would have been served without MTW, the MTW agency will provide the number of families occupying
local, non-traditional units by household size for the most recently completed Fiscal Year in the provided table.

Family Size:
Occupied Number of Local, Non-Traditional units by
Household Size

1 Person 0

2 Person 0

3 Person 0

4 Person 0

5 Person 0

6+ Person 0

Totals 0

 

H. Public Comment

Attached you will find a copy of all of the comments received and a description of how the agency analyzed the
comments, as well as any decisions made based on those comments.

 
Please see attached for an additional public hearing held for Agency-Specific Waiver(s) and/or Safe Harbor Waiver(s)
 

I. Evaluations.

 
No known evaluations.

 



����������	��	


�	����������������������	��������������
��
��	���	
��	���������
������� �!"# $%&'(�!")*+,-�'.!"���")/01
2( 3$ 4( "2)567

89�9�:	�����	����������������
�8�;���:	<	����	��

=>>?@ABC>BDEFG?@BHIJBKIJ?HIBLCEM?IN

OPQ�R�9�STUUVWSSX

YZ���	��W[\]W\SWSU

�����	�����������������������	��������������̂���<���������̂���
��	���	
�_������
��	���������
����
�������������Y�	�	�����������<	������	


àbcdefgdfhijklmfgmfbjifngkopfgmfqgrrcsscgdiosfgmfbjiftuhlcafvguscdef̀eidawfxtv̀ yflcsbipfhilgz{fksfcbsfqjkco|iosgdfgofgbjiofkubjgoc}ip
tv̀ fgmmcacklfcmfbjioifcsfdgfngkopfgmfqgrrcsscgdios{f~fk||og�ifbjifsuhrcsscgdfgmfbjiffff���ikofkdp�gof�ff̀dduklftv̀ ftlkd{fjioicdkmbio
oimiooipfbgfks�fbjiftlkd�{fgmfzjcajfbjcsfpgauridbfcsfkf|kob{fkdpfrk�ifbjifmgllgzcdefaiobcmcakbcgdfkdpfkeoiiridbsfzcbjfbjif�i|kobridbfgm
vguscdefkdpf�ohkdf�i�ilg|ridbfxv��yfmgofbjiftv̀ fmcsaklfwikofhiecddcdef�������{fcdfagddiabcgdfzcbjfbjifsuhrcsscgdfgmfbjiftlkdfkdp
cr|liridbkbcgdfbjioigm�

��B��ABDGHIB?MB@CIM?M�AI�B�?��B��ABH��G?@HFGAB@C���A�AIM?�AB�CEM?INBH>>C�JHF?G?��BM��H�AN�B�C�BHI�B�GHIB?I@C��C�H�?INBME@�

M��H�AN��B>C�B��AB�E�?MJ?@�?CIB?IB��?@�B��ABDL�B?MBGC@H�AJB���B�� B¡B¢�����

��B��ABDGHIB@CI�H?IMBHB@A��?>?@H�?CIBF�B��ABH���C��?H�AB£�H�ABC�BGC@HGBC>>?@?HGMB��H�B��ABDGHIB?MB@CIM?M�AI�B�?��B��ABH��G?@HFGA

�CIMCG?JH�AJBDGHI¤B��?@�B?I@GEJAMBHB@A��?>?@H�?CIB��H�B�A¥E?�AMB��AB��A�H�H�?CIBC>BHIB�IHG�M?MBC>BK��AJ?�AI�MB��K�B�C

�H?�BLCEM?INB��C?@A¤BC�B�MMAMM�AI�BC>B�H?�BLCEM?INB���L�B��AIBH��G?@HFGA¤B>C�B��ABDL�¦MB�E�?MJ?@�?CIBHIJBH

JAM@�?��?CIBC>B��AB�HIIA�B?IB��?@�B��ABDL�BDGHIB?MB@CIM?M�AI�B�?��B��ABH��G?@HFGAB�CIMCG?JH�AJBDGHIB���B�� B¡¡B¢���¤

¢����§¤B¢��̈�§¤BHIJB¢����§��

�̈B��ABDL�B�HMBAM�HFG?M�AJBHB AM?JAI�B�J�?MC��B©CH�JBC�B©CH�JM¤B��AB�A�FA�M�?�BC>B��?@�B�A��AMAI�MB��AB�AM?JAI�M

HMM?M�AJBF�B��ABDL�¤B@CIMEG�AJB�?��B��?MB AM?JAI�B�J�?MC��B©CH�JBC�B©CH�JMB?IBJA�AGC�?INB��ABDGHI¤B?I@GEJ?INBHI�

@�HINAMBC�B�A�?M?CIMB�CB��AB�CG?@?AMBHIJB��CN�H�MB?JAI�?>?AJB?IB��ABDGHIBFA>C�AB��A�B�A�AB?��GA�AI�AJ¤BHIJB@CIM?JA�AJ

��AB�A@C��AIJH�?CIMBC>B��AB �©B���B�� B¢ª̈��̈��B��ABDL�B�HMB?I@GEJAJB?IB��ABDGHIBMEF�?MM?CIBHB@C��BC>B��A

�A@C��AIJH�?CIMB�HJABF�B��AB AM?JAI�B�J�?MC��B©CH�JBC�B©CH�JMBHIJBHBJAM@�?��?CIBC>B��AB�HIIA�B?IB��?@�B��ABDGHI

HJJ�AMMAMB��AMAB�A@C��AIJH�?CIM�

��B��ABDL�B��C�?JAMBHMME�HI@ABHMB�H��BC>B��?MB@A��?>?@H�?CIB��H�«

�?�B��AB AM?JAI�B�J�?MC��B©CH�JB�HJBHIBC��C��EI?��B�CB�A�?A�BHIJB@C��AI�BCIB��AB@�HINAMB�CB��AB�CG?@?AMBHIJB��CN�H�M

FA>C�AB?��GA�AI�H�?CIBF�B��ABDL�¬

�??�B��AB@�HINAMB�A�ABJEG�BH���C�AJBF�B��ABDL�B©CH�JBC>B?�A@�C�MB�C�BM?�?GH�BNC�A�I?INBFCJ��¬BHIJ

�???�B��AB�A�?MAJB�CG?@?AMBHIJB��CN�H�MBH�ABH�H?GHFGAB>C�B�A�?A�BHIJB?IM�A@�?CI¤BH�B��AB��?I@?�HGBC>>?@ABC>B��ABDL�BJE�?IN

IC��HGBFEM?IAMMB�CE�M�

§�B��ABDL�B�HJAB��AB��C�CMAJBDGHIBHIJBHGGB?I>C��H�?CIB�AGA�HI�B�CB��AB�EFG?@B�AH�?INBH�H?GHFGAB>C�B�EFG?@B?IM�A@�?CIBH�

GAHM�B�§BJH�MBFA>C�AB��AB�AH�?IN¤B�EFG?M�AJBHBIC�?@AB��H�BHB�AH�?INB�CEGJBFAB�AGJBHIJB@CIJE@�AJBHB�AH�?INB�CBJ?M@EMMB��A

DGHIBHIJB?I�?�AJB�EFG?@B@C��AI��

®�B��ABDL�B@A��?>?AMB��H�B?�B�?GGB@H���BCE�B��AB�EFG?@B�CEM?INB��CN�H�BC>B��ABHNAI@�B?IB@CI>C��?��B�?��B�?�GAB̄KBC>B��AB�?�?G

 ?N��MB�@�BC>B�¢®�B���B°�£���B�ªªªJ±�ªªªJ²��¤B��AB�H?�BLCEM?INB�@�B���B°�£���B̈®ª�±�¢�¤B£A@�?CIB§ª�BC>B��A

 A�HF?G?�H�?CIB�@�BC>B�¢³̈B��¢B°�£���B³¢��¤B�?�GABKKBC>B��AB��A�?@HIMB�?��B?MHF?G?�?AMB�@�B���B°�£���B���ª�BA�BMA¥��¤BHIJ

C��A�BH��G?@HFGAB@?�?GB�?N��MB�A¥E?�A�AI�MBHIJB��H�B?�B�?GGBH>>?��H�?�AG�B>E���A�B>H?�B�CEM?INB?IB��ABHJ�?I?M��H�?CIBC>B��A

��CN�H��BKIBHJJ?�?CI¤B?>B?�BHJ�?I?M�A�MBHBLCEM?INB��C?@AB̄CE@�A�BD�CN�H�¤B��ABDL�B@A��?>?AMB��H�B?�B�?GGBHJ�?I?M�A�B��A

��CN�H�B?IB@CI>C��?��B�?��B��AB�H?�BLCEM?INB�@�¤B�?�GAB̄KBC>B��AB�?�?GB ?N��MB�@�BC>B�¢®�¤B£A@�?CIB§ª�BC>B��A

 A�HF?G?�H�?CIB�@�BC>B�¢³̈¤B�?�GABKKBC>B��AB��A�?@HIMB�?��B?MHF?G?�?AMB�@�¤BHIJBC��A�BH��G?@HFGAB@?�?GB�?N��MB�A¥E?�A�AI�M¤

HIJB��H�B?�B�?GGBH>>?��H�?�AG�B>E���A�B>H?�B�CEM?INB?IB��ABHJ�?I?M��H�?CIBC>B��AB��CN�H��

³�B��ABDL�B�?GGBH>>?��H�?�AG�B>E���A�B>H?�B�CEM?IN¤B��?@�B�AHIMB��H�B?�B�?GGB�H́AB�AHI?IN>EGBH@�?CIMB�CB>E���A�B��ABNCHGM

?JAI�?>?AJB?IB��AB�MMAMM�AI�BC>B�H?�BLCEM?INB���L�B@CIJE@�AJB?IBH@@C�JHI@AB�?��B��AB�A¥E?�A�AI�MBC>B��B�� B¡B§��§ª

���CEN�B§��µª¤B��H�B?�B�?GGB�H́ABICBH@�?CIB��H�B?MB�H�A�?HGG�B?I@CIM?M�AI�B�?��B?�MBCFG?NH�?CIB�CBH>>?��H�?�AG�B>E���A�B>H?�



���������	�
���	��������	

������	������������������	�
���������������	������������������	�������	����
	���������������

������� �! �!��"���#$%���������������&����������	���������������� �!�	�
��������������'( 
!��)��������������	�

����#$%������&����
�����������	��%�$������#$%���������������&����������	���������������� �!�������	��
���������

%������'�����'(����������	�����	������*	���������������	�������������
������	��+��
���������	�,�����
�����������	��

���������������������������������	��+�	

�����������������
����������	���	���	����	���������-��������������������

	-	�	��+����.���������	�/����
��������������������	�,��������/����
������0�������	��-������	�����	��-�,����������	��

����������	����&���������#$%0����-�-�����+�	�
��	���	���������
������������������	�	,����	�
�	�������

1������#$%�#	�����	������
��	�����,���������2�	��
��	����������3

"���#$%�����	�,�����������&����
�
	�	����$)45��(��(1�#6�7689�8�
������	��	����	������������	�


����,��	����� 	����������
����#6$�:��������''2;(!+

"����,������������2�	��
��	��������������-�
����������
�������������	���	����	�������������������������


�-������������������������
�������
�����	����������	�����	�����	-	�	��������+�	�
�	�������	���������

�����
�������������	����	������
��.�,��	-������	���������	
�����
�������������
�����������<���	�
��,����	�

�	�������+

%
����������	�����2�	��
��	�������������
�����-��	���	�,���������
����������������	��������������

������������������	����
��������	�������������,�$)4+

"���#$%���	��	.����	���	�����	���������	��������	�������	��	�����������������������������	�����	��-�,

������������	����������+�	�


"���#$%����-�
���������-���������������2�	��
��	��������������,����
������������������������������������-�

�������	���	�
���������	�������	����������
���������������� �! '!�

���"���#$%��������,�����������������������	�	�����
��������	�������������	�������	��������	����������%��

4��������	�����%������'��(�

'���6��	����
	������������������(�'�( 	! �!��$)40��=&�	�%���������������#$%���������	.��	�
�������	�������

��������,��������������	��
������*�	�������	���������
����
�����,������	���	���	����	�
�����	.�������&������

������������������
����
�������	����������*�	�������	��������	��	����	���������������	������$)42	������
���������

''��"���#$%��������,����������%����������	�>	�������%������'�;1�	�
��������#	����'��#�������	�
�#����
������������

=��������������9�	�
	�
��	�
���&��������������%����������,��,�����#�,���	,�$	�
��	���
�

'���"���#$%��������,������������&�������������9����������������$�������	�
�)��	��4�-��������%������'�;1�

=���,�����?�����������������@��2���A��,2@���6������#��������	�
��������������������������	�����	���������#	��

'�(�

'���"���#$%��������,������	�&���������	�
�����	�������&�����������������)�����������	�����%�����	����	�
���	

#������,�%�&���������#�������%������'����	�
�����������������	������	���������#	������	��	����	���

'���"���#$%�����	.��	�������	���	�����	��-��	���������	�	�
������	��������������,�	�
������5�������������������������
��

�������(�'�( 	!�

'(��"���#$%�������-�
����������������������,����$)4�	�,�
�������	�������	����������������������,����$)4����
����

�	��,�����������-������
�������:	����	�=�-��������	�#���,�%���	�
���������	��
�	��������������	����
	�����������

����#	���(1����#	���(�����������-�,�

';��B���������������������������������#$%��������,������4	-��2>	�������$)4�
��������
��	����	�����&���������

��
���9�������'���������)����
�9�	����$�������%������'����	�
����������	���B��.�$�����	�
�9	���,�9�	�
	�
��%���

'���"���#$%����.���������
�����	����
	�����������������������	�
��	����	���	���������-��	�
������
��������������	���

����������	����&����������

'1��"���#$%��������,����������@�	
2>	��
�#	����#���������#��-�������%������������
����	�@�	
2>	��
�#	����$	<	�


��
�������%������'�����	�
��������#	����(�

'���"���#$%��������,����������������������
�������	�
���&�������������������#	��������)�������%
�������	��-�

��&����������������#����������	�
�%�
�����&����������������
��	����	���	�%�����	���������
�����������������
���

���������������	����	�������&����
���
�������������'�(����''(��1�(���	�
�'����(��,������������	��9�2���������
�������

��&����
�	����	��������9�2���>����4��	��	����	���



����������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������
���

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����	�����������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������	��������

��������������������������������	����� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������


������������������������������ ������������������������������������������������	�������������������������������������

��������������������	����������	����������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������

������	�

����������	������������������������������������
���������������!�������������������������������� ��������"�������������

#������������������$�%�

&'()*+,-.(/0'1*/2-3-4'55-678)-'9-:;+<
4'

=>??@

��	�A��� ��	�A����B�	�C���

-D-	�������	����������!������E������FG

---HIE������	����������!������E�������----�I���----

J������������������������������������������������������"����
���������������������������������������������������������
���"���������������������K;1+*+,L��M#�
���
��������������������������������������C�����������������������������������B��������������������$�N�M�O�C������"�����"�����P�Q��M�O�C��QR�S"�QN��%�

A�������TU�������#�������V>-W;8'X-Y'Z A����[�����C������� :;1*));-\++*)
� �
O������� #��� O������� #���

]̂_̀abcd_èfdgd_h̀i_jgkdl_bd̀mǹomphcbq̀gbèakrgb̀i_s_tmjl_bd̀ch̀gpd̂mkcu_èdm̀hmtcvcd̀d̂_̀cbnmklgdcmb̀k_wp_hd_ècb̀d̂ch̀nmkl̀rx̀sckdp_̀mǹ]cdt_̀yz{̀a|f|̀}me_{̀f_vdcmb̀y~�ỳ_d̀h_w|{̀gbe

k_qptgdcmbh̀jkmlptqgd_èd̂_k_pbe_k̀gd̀]cdt_̀yz{̀}me_̀mǹ�_e_kgt̀�_qptgdcmbh|̀�_hjmbh_h̀dm̀d̂_̀vmtt_vdcmb̀mǹcbnmklgdcmb̀gk_̀k_wpck_èdm̀mrdgcb̀g̀r_b_�cd̀mk̀dm̀k_dgcb̀g̀r_b_�cd|̀]̂_

cbnmklgdcmb̀k_wp_hd_èem_h̀bmd̀t_bècdh_tǹdm̀vmb�ce_bdcgtcdx|̀]̂ch̀cbnmklgdcmb̀ch̀vmtt_vd_èdm̀_bhpk_̀vmljtcgbv_̀�cd̂�̀o�̀�tgb{̀}csct̀�cq̂dh{̀gbèk_tgd_ètg�h̀gbèk_qptgdcmbh̀cbvtpecbq̀�o�

jtgb̀_t_l_bdh̀d̂gd̀̂gs_̀v̂gbq_e|

�prtcv̀k_jmkdcbq̀rpke_b̀nmk̀d̂ch̀cbnmklgdcmb̀vmtt_vdcmb̀ch̀_hdclgd_èdm̀gs_kgq_̀�|y�̀̂ mpkh̀j_k̀x_gk̀j_k̀k_hjmbh_{̀cbvtpecbq̀d̂_̀dcl_̀nmk̀k_sc_�cbq̀cbhdkpvdcmbh{̀h_gkv̂cbq̀_�chdcbq̀egdg

hmpkv_h{̀qgd̂_kcbq̀gbèlgcbdgcbcbq̀d̂_̀egdg̀b__e_e{̀gbèvmljt_dcbq̀gbèk_sc_�cbq̀d̂_̀vmtt_vdcmb̀mǹcbnmklgdcmb|̀oaìlgx̀bmd̀vmtt_vd̀d̂ch̀cbnmklgdcmb{̀gbèk_hjmbe_bdh̀gk_̀bmd̀k_wpck_e

dm̀vmljt_d_̀d̂ch̀nmkl{̀pbt_hh̀cd̀echjtgxh̀g̀vpkk_bdtx̀sgtcè���̀}mbdkmt̀�plr_k|

��������������������������� ¡¢£¤¥¦�§¢̈©¡ª¤̈«�¬�¡®®�̄°±£�¡²�³́¥µ�¡�²¡ª®� ¶·�̧��¹¹�̄º� »� ¼

½¾¡ª®�¿·���ÀÁ¹ÂÃ�²¡ª�Ä�Å�Å̧�Æª¤¥̈µÇ�È«�É¡ÊË��¡£̈Ç¤ÌÍ�¤¥� ¶·�̄µ±¢ªµ�̄«£̈µ®£Î¼¢ÈË¤±� ¡¢£¤¥¦�¼¡ª̈́Ë�́̈

��ÎÀÁÎÅ�Å̧��ÀÏÀ�¼Ð�Ñ̄º



 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

 

ORDER 25-25-06-02H In the Matter of Granting Approval for the 

Submittal of the Annual Plan, and MTW 

Supplement to HUD.  

 

 WHEREAS, Homes for Good is required by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work 
Responsibility Act of 1998 (and ensuing HUD requirements) to submit a Certification of 
Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations for its Annual Plan  
 
WHEREAS, Homes for Good is required by Move to Work to submit an MTW Certification 
of Compliance with its MTW Supplement.  
 

   
 
NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

The Homes for Good Board approve the submittal of the Annual Plan and MTW 

Supplement by way of signature on the following documents: 

Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations, HUD Form 50077-ST-

HCV-HP 

MTW Certifications of Compliance, HUD Form 50075- MTW 

 

 
DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners     





 
HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM  

 

TO:  Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  

FROM: Jordyn Shaw, Public Information Officer 

TITLE: In the Matter of approving the Access & Opportunity Plan for July 2025 – June 2026 

DATE:  June 25th, 2025    

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MOTION:   

It is moved that the Board of Commissioners approve Homes for Good’s Access & Opportunity Plan which 

effective July 2025 to June 2026. 

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 

Homes for Good Housing Agency is requesting Board approval for the Access & Opportunity Plan that was 
created to formalize a strategy on how to address barriers to housing, services, and programs. 
 

B. Background 

To further our Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion goals, Homes for Good established an 

internal Equity Strategy Team (EST) to address racial disparities within our organization, promote equity in 
our hiring and promotional practices, as well as to provide greater opportunities in contracting and services 
available to the people we serve. One of the primary goals of the EST was to develop a Strategic Equity Plan 
for the agency that would alleviate barriers for our contractors, partners, and participants in accessing our 
programs and services. 
 
We launched the development of the Strategic Equity Plan in the Fall of 2020 with a work session with the 
Homes for Good Board of Commissioners. In the first two quarters of 2021 we continued the development 
of this plan by actively engaging our staff members to get their advice and input on the plan. In the Summer 
of 2021, we brought back the Strategic Equity Plan to the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners for 
advice and input during another work session. 
 
The results of the initial draft led to the creation of a framework for a 3-year plan that 
infuses Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion into a larger strategic plan to make sure all efforts are being steered 
in the direction of more equitable and inclusive services. The Strategic Equity Plan has been divided by four 
overarching themes: Listen to Our Communities, Tell the Human Story, Create Pathways to Self-Sufficiency, 
and Lead and Grow Ethically. 
 
In June of 2022 the Homes for Good Board of Commissioner’s approved the Strategic 
Equity Plan for Year 1 (July 2022 – June 2023), and the plan was put into action. Homes for Good staff 
documented and reported progress on the plan by bringing quarterly progress reports to the Board of 
Commissioners and distributing these reports to staff and residents. 
 
In June of 2023, and June of 2024 Years 2 and 3 were subsequently approved by the board. These plans 
used the previous year’s plan as a base, modifying the goals to show progress over the past year, and to 
focus the goals on better customer service for our residents and clients. The EST drafted these plans from 



 
March - June of the respected years engaging with Board members in two separate SEP subcommittee 
meetings, a Board gallery walk, the Leadership team, Manager team, and an All-Staff gallery walk. 
Engagements allowed the plan to be revised, refined, and clarified to make sure progress could be made 
within the next year towards the goals with the objective of being more measurable. 
 
In April of 2025, Homes for Good introduced our Community Centered Initiatives made up of 2 parts: 
The Access & Opportunity Plan and our Financial Stability Roadmap.  These two plans will come 
together into a larger planning effort to combine all the Agency’s strategic planning into one place. The 
Initiatives will be dynamic in years to come, with the possibility of additional parts and plans which can be 
added as needed.  
 
With this, the Strategic Equity Plan has been transformed into the Access & Opportunity Plan. This plan will 
continue to focus on increasing access to our programs and services through evaluating the best practices 
and ways that the Agency can break down systematic barriers. The focus continues to be on the communities 
we serve, learning from their experiences to base operational changes on. We will continue to take a human-
centered approach, making programmatic changes to promote wealth building as well as improving the 
mental, physical, and financial health of our residents and program participants. We will also continue to 
improve our employee experience to regain and retain a diverse workforce. This plan will continue to be 
guided on the pillars of “Listen to our Communities,” “Tell the Human Story,” “Create Pathways to Self-
Sufficiency,” and “Lead and Grow Ethically,” and is co-written by our Access + Opportunity Planning Team 
and our Leadership Team being informed by management, staff, and Board feedback. 

 
C. Analysis 

The Access & Opportunity Plan continues to be informed by management, staff, and Board feedback. This 
year, feedback from three different engagements and activities informed the direction of the plan.  
 
All-Staff Engagement 
 
On March 18, 2025, Homes for Good staff participated in an engagement session. The purpose of this session 
was to reflect on the current SEP, identify priorities for the next year, and begin shaping the goals and tactics 
that inform the Access & Opportunity. Staff responded to the following five questions, using sticky notes to 
share their input: 

1. What is a challenge or opportunity in your department that should be reflected in next year’s SEP? 
2. What SEP goals might not be accomplished this year and should be carried forward? 
3. What is one thing you can begin doing now to make progress on an SEP goal? 
4. What barriers or roadblocks have impacted progress on SEP goals? 
5. What SEP progress point are you most proud of from the past year? 

 
How Staff Feedback Shows Up in the Plan: New and Enhanced Goals & Tactics 
 
Staff emphasized the need for greater professional development, leadership opportunities, and technical 
training. Sample input included: “More internal hiring,” “Increase certification opportunities,” “More hands-
on training,” and “Career advancement support.”  These comments are reflected in: 
• Goal 7’s tactic “Integrate trainings and a skills inventory into our Agency Interest List for internal 

employment opportunities.” 
• Goal 12’s tactic “Implement maintenance skills assessments and annual training on maintenance tasks 

and formalized customer service training.” 
• Goal 16’s tactic “Train Maintenance staff on appliance repair to reduce equipment replacement costs 

and environmental impact.” 



 
 
Capacity challenges, including understaffing and heavy workloads, were frequently cited. These comments 
are reflected in Goal 13 with tactics such as: 
• “Implement procedures to reduce redundancies and increase efficiency of 2–3 tasks using AI.” 
• “Implement AI agents, both staff- and public-facing, for handling common questions.” 

 
How Staff Feedback Shows Up in the Plan: New Continuation of Goals 
 
Staff advocated more Yardi training and expanded use of digital portals for participants. These are reflected 
in Goal 13’s Tactics:  
• “Continue Yardi portal implementation focusing on Rent Assistance for recertifications, the Vendor portal 

and Vendor Shield.” 
• “Using the Computer on Wheels (COW), host basic computer skill classes for residents. 

 
Board Engagement 
 
On March 19, 2025, the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners held a work session to provide input on 
future strategic directions. Commissioners responded to four questions: 

1. If the Board were to have specific SEP-related responsibilities, what should they be? 
2. What current SEP goals are important to continue into next year? 
3. How can the Board better support existing SEP goals in the coming year? 
4. What are emerging challenges or opportunities that should be reflected in the next SEP? 

 
How Board Feedback Shows Up in the Plan: Continuation and Expansion of Goals 
 
Commissioners emphasized the importance of public-private partnerships and sustaining efforts that were 
already underway. This is reflected in Goal 10: “Educate and mobilize the private sector to increase 
affordable housing development and preservation, with a focus on housing stability for cost-burdened 
households and people experiencing homelessness.” 
 
Sustainability, program growth, and HUD education were also key themes. Commissioners specifically 
proposed expanding the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program and supporting voucher-holder education. 
These comments are reflected in: 
• Goal 6’s tactic, “Complete rebrand and rename of FSS program with MTW waiver possibilities to increase 

enrollment by 25%.” 
• Goal 9’s tactic, “Create and implement a process for recertification workshops, including a staffing 

schedule, facilitator guide, and accessible community spaces.” 
 
Middle Management Engagement 
 
On April 30, 2025, Homes for Good’s leadership team and supervisor/manager team participated in a strategy 
workshop to co-develop new tactics for the Access & Opportunity Plan. Working in small groups by functional 
area, participants identified concrete actions and then linked them to existing or emerging strategic goals. 
 
How Middle Management Feedback Shows Up in the Plan: New Tactics 
 
A variety of new tactics originated directly from this session, including: 
 

Pillar 1: Listen to Our Communities 
• “Implement customer service surveys within community rooms.” 



 
• “Host 2 annual listening sessions in collaboration with RED and Communications.” 
• “Support Resident Councils by providing 2 trainings and forming 1 new Council.” 
• “Create a more robust informational page for landlords on the Homes for Good website.” 
• “Expand landlord meetings to occur in external Property Management offices.” 

Pillar 2: Tell the Human Story 
• “Incorporate a ‘Resident Corner Section’ in quarterly newsletters.” 
• “Add a section to newsletters to talk about policy/procedure modifications and site 

improvements.” 
• “Celebrate successes with residents such as good inspection scores.” 

Pillar 3: Create Pathways to Self-Sufficiency 
• “Create and implement a process for recertification workshops, including a staffing schedule, 

facilitator guide, and identifying community spaces.” 
• “Create an action plan for a voluntary rent reporting program to increase resident credit scores.” 
• “Increase resident employment opportunities through expansions to PSH CREW and FSS 

internships.” 
• “Strengthen partnerships with STEP, Workforce Lane, Connected Lane, etc.” 

Pillar 4: Lead & Grow Ethically 
• “Implement maintenance skills assessments and annual training on maintenance tasks and 

formalized customer service training.” 
• “Train Maintenance staff on appliance repair to save money and reduce carbon footprint.” 
• “Plant drought-resistant native plants at new developments and rehabs with an emphasis on pest-

repelling plants.” 
• “Create process and procedures to reduce the number of trips that maintenance staff take to pick 

up supplies to increase ‘wrench’ time.” 

 
C. Alternatives & Other Options 
If the plan is not approved, the Access & Opportunity Team will revise the plan based on feedback or 
shortcomings and bring the plan back to the board in August of 2025 
 
D. Timing & Implementation 
Progress and implementation of certain tactics have already begun. Upon approval of 
the plan, other tactics will start to be implemented, and progress will begin to be 
compiled for a quarterly report. 
 
E. Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the Access & Opportunity Plan for July of 
2025- June 2026.  
 
F. Follow Up 
The Access & Opportunity Planning Team will bring two annual updates to the Board of Commissioners 
of the progress made towards the Access & Opportunity Plan goals. These progress reports will occur 
in January 2026 (July-December progress) and July 2026 (January-June progress). 
 
G. Attachments 

▪ Access & Opportunity Plan for July of 2025- June 2026. 
 
 





































 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

ORDER 25-25-06-03H In the Matter of approving the Access & 

Opportunity Plan for July 2025 – June 2026 

 

 WHEREAS, the Homes for Good’s Access & Opportunity Team was as a created 

cross-functional team is responsible for developing, implementing, and monitoring our 

Access & Opportunity Plan while ensuring alignment with our mission to provide stable 

housing solutions and strengthen community partnerships; and 

 WHEREAS, the Access & Opportunity Planning Team created a Access & 

Opportunity Plan that outlines the goals and actions steps of the agency to build on our 

foundation of providing homes, serving people, fostering partnerships, and delivering 

good outcomes for our community over the course of the next year; and 

 WHEREAS, the goals and action steps of the Access & Opportunity Plan were 

shared with the staff, and the board for feedback, comments, and concerns; 

 WHEREAS, the staff on 3/18/25 participated in a all-staff engagement for 

recommendations and feedback to incorporate into the plan; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board met on 3/19/25 in a work session for recommendations and 

feedback to incorporate into the plan; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined that the goals and actions steps that the Access 

& Opportunity Team drafted are aligned with the input and recommendations as well as 

the mission of the organization; 

 

NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

The Homes for Good Board of Commissioners review and approve Access & Opportunity 

Plan for July 2025 – June 2026.  

 

DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   





Self-Managed Portfolio 

Repositioning                       [Audrey 

+ Ela + Wakan] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

Nov
-2

5

Dec
-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

Hire a consultant to analzye Public Housing portfolio 

and develop project plan and timeline for how to 

optimize repostioning considering federal subsidy 

options, LIHTC, and debt. 

Jacob Wakan Audrey (consultant hours) (consultant costs)

Have kick-off meeting with our land use consultant 

and our legal counsel specific to the 

McKenzie Village water/sewer system.

Audrey (track) (pay as we go)

Rezone McKenzie Village from Public Land & Open 

Space to R-1 Residential.
Audrey (track) (pay as we go)

Could impact SUB taking on McKenzie 

Village water/sewage if re-zoned as 

residential

Identify attorney that specializes in property 

acquisition and eminent domain for Firwood. 

Determine source of bridge loan for acquisition.

Jacob (Attorney hours) (Attorney costs)



Third-Party Managed Portfolio 

Repositioning                           

[Audrey + Sean + Wakan] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

No
v-

25

D
ec

-2
5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

Complete a financial analysis for self-managing this 

portfolio or part of it.
Wakan Victoria 12hrs No cost

If financial analysis indicates self-management is 

feasible a more comprehensive business plan should 

be developed.

Victoria (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey) (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey)

Complete a recapitalization/re-syndication plan for the 

portfolio with a priority list of which properties 

should be prioritized.

Victoria (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey) (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey)

Determine whether existing properties beyond the 

LIHTC compliance period (15 years) could be sold 

as affordable condos as a strategy to preserve 

property, increase affordable home ownership and 

increase organizational financial liquidity.

Victoria (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey) (Jacob talk to Vic/Audrey)



Lease Vacant Commercial Speace                     

[Audrey + Ela + Sean] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

Nov
-2

5

Dec
-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

Prepare operating budget for the Bus Barn factoring 

in grant for the CDC and other capital 

projects currently in play.

Audrey 40 0

Begin negotiations with Lane County to convert Bus 

Barn from long term lease to Homes 

for Good ownership.

Jacob 10 0

Analyze The Olive clinic space using reasonable 

assumptions and various scenarios (i.e., if 

the space would need $150k in tenant improvements 

how long would it take to recoup the cost through a 

market-rate lease; could the improvements be 

Agency financed?).

Ela 40 $150-200K
Utilize the formatting for the 

Bus Barn operating budget 

that Audrey is drafting 

Develop plan and timeline to transfer the ownership 

of the Heeran Center to another organization

Jacob Audrey Victoria 60 0

Market the Farview Office space to other public 

organizations
Audrey and Wakan 12 (realtor costs)



Trends & Five-Year Forecast                     

[Ela + Sean] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

Nov
-2

5

Dec
-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

Review Lane County’s five-year forecast and a multi-

year forecast from a PHA as a tool 

for the Agency to learn from.

Sean 20
Coincide with next years' budget 

cycle. Bailey will need some labor 

forecasting for bargaining purposes

Develop a multi-year labor cost increase trending 

analysis that can be used during 

bargaining and the FY 26 budget development.

Sean + Bailey 10

Finish quality control for FY 25 Yardi budget variance 

reports.
Sean 17

Determine what capability Yardi has for multi-year 

financial forecasting.
Sean ~12

Jan - Mar: Review tool + April - 

Jun: Utilize tool

Develop forecast for Medicaid HRSN (Health-Related 

Social Needs) revenue growth.
Wakan + Sean 12

N/A



Cashflow Analysis                        [Ela 

+ Sean] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

Nov
-2

5

Dec
-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

Analyze the COCC cashflow to determine if expenses 

are exceeding revenue or if the fronting of funds in 

advance of getting reimbursements is creating the 

cash flow challenges.

Ela

linked to Budget?

Analyze the Public Housing portfolio to determine if 

expenses are exceeding revenue.
Sean 8 0

linked to Budget?

Determine what impacts a new CBA could have on 

our agency cash flow.
Sean 12 0

with Bailey

Update our overhead allocation methodologies for 

key grants and the Energy Services Department.
Sean 16 0

current highest priority

Redesign our array of bank accounts and 

dramatically reduce the # of accounts from the 

existing array of @150.

Sean

25 Hours 0

potentially in conjunction 

with bank migration

Complete the reconciliation between our records and 

HUD's records for the HCV Admin Fee and 

HAP

Sean

15-25 hours 0



Grant Compliance, Invoicing & Fiscal Monitoring                                                       

[Beth + Esteban + Sean + Wakan] M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Au
g-

25

Se
p-

25

O
ct

-2
5

Nov
-2

5

Dec
-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Fe
b-

26

M
ar

-2
6

Ap
r-

26

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26 Task Lead Anticipated Hours Anticipated Cost Notes

As noted in the Trends & Five-Year Forecast slides considers we will analyze 

how much revenue potential there is for Medicaid HRSN billing. We may want 

to engage a consultant to help analyze current practices and future potential 

including estimating how much revenue could be generated from Medicaid 

HRSN billing.

Wakan 12 N/A

As we build our FY 26 Budget in the considers we will determine whether 

there is enough funding from these grants to add a Grant Accounting position 

in Finance and a Grants Compliance position(s) that can take some pressure 

off Department Directors.

Sean 8 0

linked to Budget?

We will develop a "go"/"no go" decision making tool to assess grant and 

funding opportunities that considers allowable administrative overhead fees, 

complexity, regulatory oversight, etc.

Sean 12 0

Need outside feedback 

to develop metrics and 

values 


	Homes for Good Foundation Bylaws.pdf
	HFGF-BYLAWS - Approved 12-10-2020.pdf
	BYLAWS
	Adopted:

	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	Section 1.  Purpose
	Section 1.  Duties of the Board
	Section 1.  Officers
	Section 1.  Establishment
	Section 1.  Compensation of Officers and Directors
	Section 2.  Conflicts of Interest
	Section 3.  Tax Year
	Section 4.  Financial Controls
	Section 5.  Annual Financial Assessment
	Section 1.  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
	BYLAWS OF THE HOMES FOR GOOD FOUNDATION
	ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE
	ARTICLE II.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ARTICLE III.  OFFICERS AND STAFF
	Section 9.  Chair.  The Board may elect a chair and determine their duties.
	ARTICLE IV.  COMMITTEES
	ARTICLE V.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Section 5.  Annual Financial Assessment.  The Board must require the performance of an annual audit, financial review, financial compilation or financial assessment, which must involve the services of a trusted person with bookkeeping skills and knowl...
	The financial oversight committee described above shall select the person performing the annual financial assessment and shall ensure that the resulting report is presented to the entire board.
	Section 6.  No Discrimination.  In the delivery of its services to the public, Homes for Good Foundation does not discriminate for or against any person on the basis of ethnicity, nationality, place of origin, religion, gender, sexual orientation, mar...
	Section 7.  Written Documents. Wherever these Bylaws require a written document, such document may be created, stored, or transmitted by electronic means in lieu of a physical, hard, or paper copy of the document. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Co...
	ARTICLE VI.  AMENDMENTS
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
	Signed this  ____ day of ____________, 2020.
	Secretary of the Homes for Good Foundation


	Presentation - Annual Plan.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: What is a PHA Plan?
	Slide 3: Why does the PHA Plan matter to me?
	Slide 4: ACOP
	Slide 5: Admin Plan
	Slide 6: What are our goals for policy review?
	Slide 7: When does this process begin and end? 
	Slide 8: Input Received:
	Slide 9: Annual Plan FY2026
	Slide 10: Acronym Key
	Slide 11: Thank You!


	DD/MM/YYYY: 10/01/2025
	MTW PHA NAME: Housing Authority & Comm Svcs of Lane Co (Homes for Good)
	MTW PHA NUMBERHA CODE: OR006
	NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL: Larissa Ennis
	TITLE: Board Chair
	SIGNATURE: 
	DATE: 


